
REPORT
.annual



2

re
po

rt
 2

02
0



.contents
Chairman’s Report 4

Directors’ Profiles 6

Corporate Governance Statement 8

Directors’ Responsibility Statement 22

Financial Report 23

Shareholder and Statutory Information 71

Corporate Directory 78

3

re
po

rt
 2

02
0



4

re
po

rt
 2

02
0

.chairman’s report

On behalf of the Board we present Good Spirits Hospitality Limited (GSH or the 
Group) Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

The 2020 financial year began well for GSH with a refreshed strategy, the new venues 
continuing to perform above expectation’s and the completion of the major development 
at Botany Commons.

The onset of the COVID-19 pandemic during the second half of the year was a difficult time 
for the Hospitality Industry in New Zealand. GSH swiftly adapted its business operations 
to deal with the immediate and ongoing implications of closure under alert level 3 and 4 
restrictions. During this period the Board met with management on a weekly basis to help 
minimise the impact to the business and to ensure that the business was well positioned 
to operate once all restrictions were removed. 

As such, the reported results (before non-cash write-down of goodwill, property plant and 
equipment and IFRS 16 changes) were in line with our expectations after confronting the 
impacts of COVID-19.

The Group also completed negotiations with its lender, Pacific Dawn Limited to amend and 
extend its secured facilities, these negotiations were concluded on 24 September 2020. Key 
points under the new agreement are, the date for repayment of the facilities is extended to 
31 July 2022 and the existing financial covenants have been removed, with new covenants 
to be agreed by 15 February 2021.

The extension of time to set covenants is pleasing and materially valuable to GSH as it 
enables appropriate covenants to be set once GSH emerges from the COVID-19 lockdown 
regime and trading returns to normal. The Board is pleased with the outcome of these 
negotiations, which gives the Group the opportunity to stabilise earnings in the wake of 
the recent COVID-19 related lockdown restrictions.

F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E

It has been a challenging year with the impact of COIVD-19 and the adoption of NZ IFRS 16 
effecting the operating results. Key points to note include:

• Operating profit before impairment and IFRS 16 changes of $1.44m (2019: $1.19m), a 
21% improvement on prior year

• Net cash from operating of $4.8m (2019: $2.3m), a 108% improvement on prior year

• The Group reported a net loss after tax of $5.8m (2019: $185k profit) for the year. The 
significant factors contributing to the reported net loss include:

 » non-cash impairment of goodwill of $4.9m
 » non-cash impairment of property plant and equipment of $59k
 » non-cash IFRS 16 - Depreciation of right-of-use assets of $1.43m
 » non-cash IFRS 16 - Interest on leases of $1.30m

The Board’s decision to impair goodwill and property plant and equipment reflects the 
ongoing uncertainty of the impacts of COVID-19 on GSH. It should be noted that the 
most significant factor in the impairment of goodwill is a change to the discount rate used 
in prior years. This change in discount rate is driven by the overall macro environment 
(especially global uncertainty caused by COVID-19) rather than any factors specific to GSH.

Report to Shareholders
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N Z  I F R S  1 6

As previously indicated the Group adopted the accounting standard NZ IFRS 16: Leases on 
1 July 2019 and this is the first year of reporting under this new standard. The new standard 
requires lessees to recognise nearly all leases on the balance sheet, which will reflect their 
right to use the asset for a period of time and the associated liability for payments. The new 
standard has changed the presentation of the balance sheet and the statement of cash flows, 
as well as affecting the amounts shown in the income statement. Rent expense in the income 
statement has been replaced by depreciation and interest.

The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective transition method. Under this 
method the Group has not restated comparatives for this reporting period

Reclassifications and adjustments are therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet. 
Reported net loss after tax (NPAT) includes a $2.73 million impact from the introduction of NZ 
IFRS 16. It is important to note that the changes have no cash effect on the Group and the 
change is for financial reporting purposes only. Further details can be found in Note 13 of the 
financial statements within this Annual Report.

A U D I T E D  A C C O U N T S 

The financial statements included in this annual report are audited and the auditors 
have issued an unqualified opinion, with an Emphasis of Matter over the going concern 
assumption. The Directors have disclosed (see note 1) a material uncertainty regarding going 
concern. 

Whilst material uncertainties exist, the Board of Directors consider that there is a reasonable 
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue operations for the 
foreseeable future. Taking all factors into consideration, the expected financial performance 
of the Group and the positive operating cash flows, it is the considered view of the Board that 
the Group is a going concern.

N O  D I V I D E N D 

The Board has resolved that no dividend will be declared for the year ended 30 June 2020.

The 2020/21 year has already clearly demonstrated that it will be the most economically, 
socially and operationally challenging period that any of us have faced. However, we remain 
excited by the significant opportunities that lie ahead for our Group. Unpredictability and 
uncertainty abound, but we remain well-placed to continue building New Zealand’s leading 
hospitality provider.

On behalf of my fellow directors, I thank you all for your continued 
support as shareholders in Good Spirits Hospitality. 

Regards

Duncan Makeig 
Chairman, Good Spirits Hospitality Limited
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.directors’ profiles
D U N C A N  M A K E I G
Bachelor of Law, LLB, Otago University
Independent Director – Chair

Duncan has over 30 years of experience in business principally 
in the FMCG sector working across multiple international 
jurisdictions, most recently as Managing Director of Lion’s 
Asia Dairy business, leading Yum! International’s franchising 
business and as General Counsel and Company Secretary, leading 
corporate M&A activity, IPOs and privatisations. 

He is currently Chief Executive Officer of China Road, a full service brand-
building partner for Australian and New Zealand premium food producers looking to 
establish and grow their brands for long term success in the Chinese market. 

He is Chairman of the Sydney Children’s Hospitals Foundation, a Director of Athletic 
Greens, Inc and has served as Chairman on a number of public and private boards, 
including Heineken-Lion Australia, Banksia Wines Ltd and Bevchain Australia Ltd.

He is co-owner of The Royal Hotel in Wyong on the Central Coast of New South Wales, 
Australia.

He chairs the Remuneration and Nominations Committee for GSH and he has been a 
Director since March 2019.

C A R L  C A R R I N G T O N 
BE (Chem & Mats), MBA (Cranfield), CMInstD
Independent Director

Carl has significant hospitality experience. His senior 
management experience is primarily in the food & 
beverage sector with 14 years in DB Breweries, Lion 
Nathan and Heineken joint venture businesses in New 
Zealand, Asia and Australia including five years as 
Managing Director of the Heineken-Lion Joint Venture 
in Australia. His most recent senior management 
experience has been six years as CEO of pan-iwi owned 
Aotearoa Fisheries. 

He is currently a Director of Hop Revolution Limited, 
McCashin’s Brewery, Cawthron Institute, Reefton 
Distilling Co, Mt Cook Alpine Salmon and Unique 
Manuka Factor Honey Association. 

He chairs the Investment Committee for GSH and has 
been a Director since July 2018. 
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M A T T  A D A M S 
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting and Business Law) 
Graduate Diploma in Finance and Applied Valuation (FINSIA)
Independent Director

Matt is an experienced finance professional with over 20 years’ 
experience in executive level positions (both public and private 
companies). He commenced his career as a Chartered Accountant in 
the field of restructuring and operational turnaround in an Australian 
mid-tier accounting firm where he was a Partner for ten years and 
then Senior Managing Director. In 2015 he founded the boutique 
corporate advisory firm Dynamic Corporate Investments of which he is Managing Director.

He brings extensive experience in growth strategies, operational efficiency consulting, business 
M&A (including acquisitions, sales and business unit carveouts) and capital structuring/ 
improvement. He has overseen major operational and financial restructurings of many listed 
companies including multi-national and cross border transactions. He has broad industry 
experience across the hospitality, retail, property, healthcare, mining and mining services, 
technology and childcare sectors. He has strong networks across the private equity, hedge fund 
and banking sectors.

He currently acts as director and company secretary for a number of ASX listed companies.

He chairs the Audit and Remuneration Committee for GSH and has been a Director since 
December 2019. 

G E O F F  T U T T L E
BA in International Finance and Trade (Accounting and Finance) 
University of Portsmouth 
Director / CEO

Geoff is an experienced and driven business professional with over 
twenty years’ experience in the international hospitality & tourism 
industry. After completing a BA in International Finance and Trade at the 
University of Portsmouth he commenced his career within the family 
FMCG business and later moved into the hospitality & tourism industry.

Upon arrival to New Zealand, he began work at Danny Doolans as a 
bartender (The original Good Spirits Hospitality venue). With a strong 
customer focus, financial acumen and a driven entrepreneur, he quickly 
moved into more senior roles becoming both manager and shareholder. 
Over the next 13 years Geoff began a series of expansions which formed 
The Better Bar Company, which Geoff and his business partner Richard 
Sigley sold to Good Spirits Hospitality Limited. Geoff has been a Director 
since 5 October 2020. He continued in his role as CEO of The Better Bar 
Company until June 2019 when he was appointed group CEO of Good 
Spirits Hospitality. 

He brings extensive experience in operational efficiency, business 
planning, leadership and a wealth of knowledge of the hospitality 
industry. 
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This corporate governance statement 
outlines Good Spirits Hospitality Limited’s 

(“GSH” or the “Group”) compliance with the 
recommendations set by the NZX Corporate 
Governance Code during the year ended 30 

June 2020 and is current as at the date of 
this Annual Report. The policies and other 

documents referred to are published 
on our website as part of the 
Directors Manual September 

2019 under Our Board.

.corporate 
governance 
statement
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P R I N C I P L E  1 :  C O D E  O F  E T H I C A L  B E H A V I O U R  
Directors should set high standards of ethical behaviour, model this behaviour and 
hold management accountable for these standards being followed throughout the 
organisation. 

Recommendation 1.1 Code of Ethical Behaviour
The board should document minimum standards of ethical behavior to which the 
issuer’s directors and employees are expected to adhere and comply with the other 
more specific requirements of this recommendation.

The GSH Code of Ethics (the “Code”) is fundamental to the way that GSH does business. 
The purpose of the Code is to set up a framework of standards by which GSH’s Directors 
and employees are expected to conduct their professional lives.

The GSH Code of Ethics is available on GSH’s website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

Recommendation 1.2 Financial dealing policy
An issuer should have a financial product dealing policy which applies to employees and 
directors.

GSH is committed to ensuring compliance with all regulatory market requirements at 
all times. GSH’s Financial Product Trading Policy and Procedures is a critical part of this 
commitment and of ensuring all Directors and employees of the Group are aware of their 
obligations and legal requirements for trading in GSH securities.

The GSH Financial Product Trading Policy and Procedures is available on GSH’s website 
(www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

P R I N C I P L E  2 :  B O A R D  C O M P O S I T I O N  A N D 
P E R F O R M A N C E
To ensure an effective board, there should be a balance of independence, skills, 
knowledge, experience and perspectives. 

Recommendation 2.1 Written Board Charter
The board of an issuer should operate under a written charter which sets out the roles 
and responsibilities of the board. The board charter should clearly distinguish and 
disclose the respective roles and responsibilities of the board and management.

The GSH Board Charter sets out how the Board exercises and discharges its powers and 
responsibilities, including through committees established by the Board, to protect and 
enhance the value of the assets of the Company in the interests of the Company and its 
shareholders. The Charter defines and prescribes the relationship between the Board, the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and the executive team. 

The Board has statutory responsibility for the affairs and activities of the Group, which 
in practice is achieved through delegation to the CEO of the day-to-day leadership and 
management of the Group. 

The GSH Board Charter complies with Recommendation 2.1 and is available on GSH’s 
website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).
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Attendance at Board meetings 

Directors attended the following total number of meetings during the accounting period 
ended 30 June 2020:

Duncan Makeig 23
John Moore 4
Carl Carrington 22
Garry Downs 5 
Charles Whiting 18
Matt Adams 18

The number of Board Meetings held by GSH was increased during the accounting period 
ended 30 June 2020 due to the impact of COVID-19.

Recommendation 2.2 Nominating and appointing directors to the board
Every issuer should have a procedure for the nomination and appointment of directors 
to the board.

The procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors are covered by GSH’s 
Remuneration and Nominations Committee (RNC) charter, the Board Charter and the NZX 
Listing Rules. 

Recommendation 2.3 Written agreements with each director 
An issuer should enter into written agreements with each newly appointed director 
establishing the terms of their appointment. 

The Directors enter into a written agreement establishing the terms of their appointment, 
including the Group’s expectations for the role of director. 

Recommendation 2.4 Information on directors 
Every issuer should disclose information about each director in its annual report or 
on its website, including a profile of experience, length of service, independence and 
ownership interests and director attendance at board meetings. 

Profiles of each Director’s experience, length of service, independence and ownership 
interests are included in the “Directors’ Profiles” section of this Annual Report. 

Directors who have held office during the year or after year end consist of:

Duncan Makeig (Independent Chairman)
John Moore (Independent Director) John resigned 11 December 2019
Craig Norris (Non-Independent Director) Craig resigned 31 July 2019
Carl Carrington (Independent Director) 
Garry Downs (Independent Director) Garry resigned 11 December 2019
Matt Adams (Independent Director) Matt was appointed 11 December 2019
Charles Whiting (Non-Independent Director) Charles was appointed 11 December 

2019 and resigned 5 October 2020
Geoff Tuttle (Non-Independent Director) Geoff was appointed 5 October 2020

   

.corporate governance statement continued
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Recommendation 2.5 Diversity Policy
An issuer should have a written diversity policy which includes requirements for the 
board or a relevant committee of the board to set measurable objectives for achieving 
diversity (which, at a minimum, should address gender diversity) and to assess annually 
both the objectives and the entity’s progress in achieving them. The issuer should 
disclose the policy or a summary of it. 

GSH is committed to creating and maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace 
culture by recognising the values of a diverse and skilled workforce. This commitment 
extends to all areas of its business and is encompassed in the Group’s diversity policy. 
As the Group believes in diversity we will always employ the best person for any job 
opportunity. GSH does not set measurable objectives for achieving diversity.

As at 30 June 2020, the gender balance of the Group’s Directors and officers was as follows:

2020 2019
Gender 
Diverse Female Male Total Gender 

Diverse Female Male Total

Directors - - 4 4 - - 5 5
Officers - 2 4 6 - 2 6 8

Recommendation 2.6 Director training 
Directors should undertake appropriate training to remain current on how to best 
perform their duties as directors of an issuer. 

Directors on their own account attend to their training needs. The Group is committed to 
supporting their training, particularly on any issues specific to the Group’s business. 

Recommendation 2.7 Performance 
The board should have a procedure to regularly assess director, board and committee 
performance.

In accordance with the GSH Board Charter, the Board reviews its performance as a whole 
on an annual basis. Performance reviews of individual Directors are undertaken as required 
and determined by the Board. 

The Board reviews annually the performance, objectives and responsibilities of each 
committee. 

Recommendation 2.8 Independent directors
A majority of the board should be independent directors.

As at 30 June 2020 three of GSH’s four Directors were independent. As at the date of this 
Annual Report, three of GSH’s four Directors are independent. 

In determining whether a Director is independent, the Board considers whether the 
Director is independent of management and free of any business or other relationship 
that could materially interfere with, or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere 
with, the exercise of his or her unfettered and independent judgement and has regard to 
the factors referred to in the commentary to Recommendation 2.4 of the NZX Corporate 
Governance Code. 



12

re
po

rt
 2

02
0

Recommendation 2.9 Chairman and CEO 
An issuer should have an independent chair of the board. If the chair is not 
independent, the chair and the CEO should be different people. 

GSH has an independent Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Board and the 
CEO are different people.

P R I N C I P L E  3 :  B O A R D  C O M M I T T E E S
The board should use committees where this will enhance its effectiveness in key 
areas, while still retaining board responsibility.

Recommendation 3.1 Audit committee 
An issuer’s audit committee should operate under a written charter. Membership on the 
audit committee should be majority independent and comprise solely of non-executive 
directors of the issuer. The chair of the audit committee should be an independent 
director and not also be the chair of the board.

GSH’s Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) has a written charter and is solely 
comprised of Independent Directors. The Chairman of the ARMC is not the Chairman of 
the Board.

Current members: Matt Adams (Chairman), Carl Carrington, Duncan Makeig.

Matt Adams has a financial background. 

The role and responsibility of the ARMC is defined in the ARMC Charter. The purpose 
of the ARMC is to assist the Board to fulfill its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities, by 
providing objective, non-executive review of the effectiveness of the external reporting 
of financial information, and the internal control environment of the Company, including 
obtaining an understanding of the tax and financial risks which face the Company.

The ARMC Charter is available on GSH’s website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

Directors attended the following total number of meetings of the ARMC:

John Moore (resigned 11 December 2019) 1
Carl Carrington 1
Duncan Makeig 1

The ARMC only meet formally once in the year. Other discussions pertaining to the ARMC 
during the accounting period ended 30 June 2020 were held by the full Board. 

Recommendation 3.2 Employees attendance at audit committee meetings
Employees should only attend audit committee meetings at the invitation of the audit 
committee.

GSH employees only attend ARMC meetings at the invitation of the ARMC. The Chair of 
the ARMC appoints a secretary for the ARMC, who is normally the Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO).

Recommendation 3.3 Remuneration committee 
An issuer should have a remuneration committee which operates under a written charter 
(unless this is carried out by the whole board). At least a majority of the remuneration 
committee should be independent directors. Management should only attend 
remuneration committee meetings at the invitation of the remuneration committee. 

.corporate governance statement continued
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GSH’s Remuneration and Nominations Committee (RNC) operates under a written charter. 
GSH’s RNC is solely comprised of Independent Directors. 

Current members: Duncan Makeig (Chairman), Carl Carrington, Matt Adams. 

The RNC, amongst other things, approves performance criteria and recommends 
remuneration for the Board, CEO and the CFO, and recommends incentive payments 
or other adjustments to executive remuneration to the Board, taking into account the 
executives’ performance review with the Board.

GSH employees may only attend RNC meetings at the invitation of the RNC.

The RNC Charter is available on GSH’s website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

Recommendation 3.4 Nomination committee 
An issuer should establish a nomination committee to recommend director appointments 
to the board (unless this is carried out by the whole board), which should operate under a 
written charter. At least a majority of the nomination committee should be independent 
directors 

GSH does not have a separate nomination committee, instead the nomination committee 
function is included in the RNC and governed by the RNC charter. In practice, the RNC and 
the Board as a whole currently undertakes the role of nominations committee given the size 
of the Group. 

Recommendation 3.5 Other committees 
An issuer should consider whether it is appropriate to have any other board committees 
as standing board committees. All committees should operate under written charters. 
An issuer should identify the members of each of its committees, and periodically report 
member attendance. 

The Board has a separate Investment Committee (IC), which has a written charter. A number 
of Board meetings incorporated IC discussions. For the accounting period ended 30 June 
2020, Directors attended the following total number of meetings of the IC:

John Moore (resigned 11 December 2019) 1
Carl Carrington 1
Garry Downs (resigned 11 December 2019) 1

It has been agreed that formal meetings of the IC will be held as and when required. 

Current members: Carl Carrington (Chairman), Duncan Makeig, Matt Adams.

The IC Charter is available on GSH’s website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

GSH has no other committees.

Recommendation 3.6 Protocols for takeover offer 
The board should establish appropriate protocols that set out the procedure to be 
followed if there is a takeover offer for the issuer including any communication between 
insiders and the bidder. The board should disclose the scope of independent advisory 
reports to shareholders. These protocols should include the option of establishing an 
independent takeover committee, and the likely composition and implementation of an 
independent takeover committee. 

GSH has established a takeover protocol that has been approved by the Board. The 
protocol, however, does not include procedures to be followed if a takeover notice is 
received, including with regard to communication with insiders and the bidder or the option 
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of establishing an independent takeover committee, and the likely composition and 
implementation of an independent takeover committee. The Board proposes to review 
the takeover protocol during the accounting period ending 30 June 2021 to bring it into 
compliance with the NZX Corporate Governance Code recommendations.

P R I N C I P L E  4 :  R E P O R T I N G  A N D  D I S C L O S U R E
The board should demand integrity in financial and non-financial reporting, and in 
the timeliness and balance of corporate disclosures. 

Recommendation 4.1 Continuous disclosure 
An issuer’s board should have a written continuous disclosure policy. 

GSH is committed to notifying the market through full and fair disclosure to the NZX of 
any material information related to its business required by applicable Listing Rules. 

GSH’s Continuous Disclosure Policy assists the Board with the need to keep GSH 
investors and markets informed through a timely, clear and balanced approach which 
communicates both positive and negative news. 

GSH has appointed its CFO as the Disclosure Officer. The CEO and the executive team are 
required to provide all material information to the Disclosure Officer. 

The Continuous Disclosure Policy is available on GSH’s website (www.
goodspiritshospitality.co.nz).

Recommendation 4.2 Make key documents available 
An issuer should make its code of ethics, board and committee charters and the policies 
recommended in the NZX Code, together with any other key governance documents, 
available on its website. 

GSH’s Code of Ethics, Board and Committee Charters, and other policies and key 
governance documents are available on GSH’s website (www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz). 

Recommendation 4.3 Financial reporting
Financial reporting should be balanced, clear and objective. An issuer should provide 
non-financial disclosure at least annually, including considering environmental, 
economic and social sustainability factors and practices. It should explain how 
operational or non-financial targets are measured. Non-financial reporting should be 
informative, include forward looking assessments, and align with key strategies and 
metrics monitored by the board.

The ARMC plays a central role in GSH’s commitment to transparent reporting of its 
financial and non-financial performance. The ARMC Charter clearly defines the roles of the 
Board, the ARMC, officers and external auditors. 

Financial reporting 
Management are responsible for implementing and maintaining appropriate accounting 
and financial reporting principles, policies, and internal controls designed to ensure 
compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. 

GSH’s external auditor, BDO Auckland (BDO), is responsible for planning and carrying 
out each external audit in line with applicable auditing and review standards. BDO is 

.corporate governance statement continued
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accountable to shareholders through the ARMC and the Board respectively. The Board 
retains overall responsibility for financial reporting. 

The ARMC makes sure that it and the full Board are sufficiently informed about good-
practice financial reporting and GSH operations to know whether financial reporting is fit 
for purpose. This means it represents a balanced viewpoint, is factual and complete, and is 
effectively implemented. 

Non-Financial reporting
GSH has not adopted environmental, economic and social sustainability governance 
reporting.

P R I N C I P L E  5 :  R E M U N E R A T I O N 
The remuneration of directors and executives should be transparent, fair and 
reasonable.

Recommendation 5.1 Director remuneration 
An issuer should recommend director remuneration to shareholders for approval in a 
transparent manner. Actual director remuneration should be clearly disclosed in the 
issuer’s annual report.

Director’s remuneration for the accounting period ended 30 June 2020 is disclosed in the 
Shareholder and Statutory Information section of the Annual Report and in note 22 to the 
Financial Statements. 

Recommendation 5.2 Remuneration policy for directors and officers 
An issuer should have a remuneration policy for remuneration of directors and officers, 
which outlines the relative weightings of remuneration components and relevant 
performance criteria.

GSH’s Director and Senior Management Remuneration Policy sets out policies which are 
fair, simple and transparent.

Remuneration of directors 
Directors are entitled to remuneration from GSH for 
directors’ fees, professional services provided 
and reasonable travel, accommodation, and 
other expenses incurred in the course of 
performing duties or exercising powers as 
directors. No Directors are entitled to any 
retirement benefits. Details of Director’s 
remuneration are disclosed in the 
“Shareholder and Statutory Information” 
section of the Annual Report and in note 
22 to the Financial Statements.
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Remuneration of GSH employees including officers 
GSH provides the opportunity for its employees to receive, where performance merits, a 
total remuneration package for equivalent market-matched roles. GSH’s Remuneration 
and Nomination Committee reviews the annual performance for all senior officers of the 
Group. The review takes into account external benchmarking to ensure competitiveness 
with comparable market peers, along with consideration of an individual’s performance, 
skills, expertise and experience. 

Total remuneration is made up of two components being: fixed remuneration and short-
term performance-based cash remuneration. The Group is investigating the establishment 
of a long-term performance-based equity remuneration plan which would be put to the 
shareholders for approval if it were to be adopted. 

Fixed Remuneration 
Fixed remuneration consists of base salary. 

Short-Term Incentive 
Short-term incentives (STI) are at-risk payments designed to motivate and reward for 
performance, typically in that financial year. The target value of an STI payment is set 
annually, usually as a percentage of the officer’s base salary. The relevant percentage 
ranges from 10% to 20%. 

Further information regarding employee remuneration is disclosed in the “Shareholder 
and Statutory Information” section of the Annual Report and in note 22 to the Financial 
Statements.

Recommendation 5.3 CEO remuneration 
An issuer should disclose the remuneration arrangements in place for the CEO in its 
annual report. This should include disclosure of the base salary, short term incentives 
and long term incentives and the performance criteria used to determine performance 
based payments. 

Details of Geoff Tuttle’s (CEO) remuneration arrangements during the accounting period 
ended 30 June 2020 are disclosed in the “Shareholder and Statutory Information” section 
of the Annual Report and in note 22 to the Financial Statements.

P R I N C I P L E  6 :  R I S K  M A N A G E M E N T 
Directors should have a sound understanding of the material risks faced by the 
issuer and how to manage them. The Board should regularly verify that the issuer 
has appropriate processes that identify and manage potential and material risks. 

Recommendation 6.1 Risk management framework 
An issuer should have a risk management framework for its business and the issuer’s 
board should receive and review regular reports. An issuer should report the material 
risks facing the business and how these are being managed.

The GSH Risk Management Policy sets out policies which are fair, simple and transparent. 
These policies, as well as related internal compliance systems that are designed to: 

• optimise the return to, and protect the interests of, stakeholders; 
• safeguard GSH assets and improve its reputation; 
• improve GSH operating performance; and 
• fulfil GSH strategic objectives. 

.corporate governance statement continued
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The risk management approach focuses on management of the following material 
business risks: 

1. Operating risks; 
2. Financial risks; 
3. Organisational risks; and 
4. Corporate risks. 

The Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing the effectiveness of the risk 
management system, and the adequacy of internal compliance and controls, which it 
believes should be monitored and managed on a continuing basis. GSH has in place a 
number of mechanisms and internal controls intended to identify and manage areas of 
material business risk. 

The ARMC is responsible for oversight, monitoring, and reviews. The CEO and senior 
management are responsible for promoting a culture of proactively managing risks, and 
reporting to the ARMC. 

GSH has undertaken a robust risk assessment process for the year ended 30 June 2020. 
The risk assessment and overall risk management framework was undertaken by the 
ARMC, following consultation with senior management and a review of the GSH risk 
register. The ARMC reported its findings to the Board. 

Recommendation 6.2 Health and safety risks 
An issuer should disclose how it manages its health and safety risks and should report 
on their health and safety risks, performance and management. 

GSH has appointed an internal health and safety officer who receives appropriate training 
on an ongoing basis. GSH maintains an incident report and the Board receives reports on 
a monthly basis at the Board meeting.

Due to the size and nature of GSH business and associated health and safety risks GSH 
does not currently report externally on Health & Safety.

P R I N C I P L E  7 :   A U D I T O R S 
The board should ensure the quality and independence of the external audit 
process. 

Recommendation 7.1 Establish a framework 
The board should establish a framework for the issuer’s relationship with its external 
auditors. This should include certain specified procedures.

GSH’s External Financial Auditors’ Independence Policy sets out the work that the external 
auditor is required to do, what other services, other than statutory audit roles, the auditor 
may provide to the Company and specifies the services that the external auditor is not 
permitted to do. This ensures the ability of the auditor to carry out their role is not impaired 
and could not be reasonably perceived to be impaired. 

All non-audit work that the external auditor performs must be approved by the Chairman 
of the ARMC. The approval details what work is to be performed and how auditor 
independence and objectivity are maintained. 
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.corporate governance statement continued

GSH put its annual audit work up for tender during the accounting period ended 30 June 
2020, which resulted in the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers and the appointment 
of BDO as its external auditor.

GSH is committed to having financial reports externally audited to meet international 
accounting standards. 

Recommendation 7.2 External auditor attend Annual Meeting 
The external auditor should attend the issuer’s Annual Meeting to answer questions 
from shareholders in relation to the audit. 

GSH’s external auditors have attended the Annual Meeting, where they have been 
available to answer shareholders’ questions about the audit. GSH expects the auditor to 
attend the Company’s 2020 Annual Meeting. 

Recommendation 7.3 Internal audit 
Internal audit functions should be disclosed. 

GSH does not have an internal audit function. 

P R I N C I P L E  8 :  S H A R E H O L D E R  R I G H T S  A N D  R E L A T I O N S 
The board should respect the rights of shareholders and foster constructive 
relationships with shareholders that encourage them to engage with the issuer. 

Recommendation 8.1 Website 
An issuer should have a website where investors and interested stakeholders can access 
financial and operational information and key corporate governance information about 
the issuer. 

The Our Board, Market Announcements and Financial Reports sections of GSH’s website 
contain financial and operational information and key corporate governance information 
about GSH. 

Recommendation 8.2 Investor communications 
An issuer should allow investors the ability to easily communicate with the issuer, 
including providing the option to receive communications from the issuer electronically. 

GSH communicates with shareholders through multiple channels throughout the year, 
including through continuous market disclosure, half-year and full-year reporting, and the 
Annual Meeting. 

GSH provides for the option for investors to receive communications electronically, to and 
from both GSH and its share registrar.

Shareholders can access GSH’s CEO and CFO who respond directly to shareholder phone 
calls and emails. 

Recommendation 8.3 Shareholder right to vote 
Quoted equity security holders should have the right to vote on major decisions which 
may change the nature of the issuer in which they are invested in. 
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Major decisions that may change the nature of GSH and its business are presented as 
resolutions at  shareholder meetings and voted on by shareholders. 

Recommendation 8.4 Seeking additional equity capital 
If seeking additional equity capital, issuers of quoted equity securities should offer 
further equity securities to existing equity security holders of the same class on a pro 
rata basis, and on no less favourable terms, before further equity securities are offered 
to other investors.

No additional equity capital was raised from investors during the year ended 30 June 2020. 
The Board will take into account Recommendation 8.4 if seeking additional equity capital. 

Recommendation 8.5 Notice of Annual Meeting 
The board should ensure that the notices of annual or special meetings of quoted equity 
security holders is posted on the issuer’s website as soon as possible and at least 20 
working days prior to the meeting. 

GSH endeavours to provide notices of annual and special meetings of quoted equity 
security holders as soon as practicable, and at least 20 working days prior to the relevant 
meetings where possible. GSH posts those notices on its website once available.

Compliance with NZX Corporate Governance Code

The Board considers that, during the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, the Company did 
not comply with certain recommendations of the NZX Corporate Governance Code dated 
1 January 2020. Details of such non-compliance are provided below. Where applicable, the 
Board has approved the alternative governance practice:

Recommendation Alternative Governance Practice and 
Reason for the Practice

Applicable Period

Recommendation 1.1: The 
board should document 
minimum standards of ethical 
behavior to which the issuer’s 
directors and employees are 
expected to adhere (a code of 
ethics).

Prior to 30 September 2019, GSH’s 
Code of Conduct did not include all 
the recommended content listed in 
Recommendation 1.1. 
The Code of Conduct was revised on 30 
September 2019 to a Code of Ethics which 
complies with Recommendation 1.1.

Between 1 July 2019 
and 30 September 
2019

Recommendation 2.5: An 
issuer should have a written 
diversity policy which includes 
requirements for the board 
or a relevant committee of 
the board to set measurable 
objectives for achieving 
diversity (which, at a minimum, 
should address gender 
diversity) and to assess 
annually both the objectives 
and the entity’s progress in 
achieving them. The issuer 
should disclose the policy or a 
summary of it.

GSH did not set measurable objectives 
for achieving diversity. This is because 
GSH is committed to creating 
and maintaining an inclusive and 
collaborative workplace culture by 
recognising the values of a diverse and 
skilled workforce. This commitment 
extends to all areas of its business. As 
the Group believes in diversity we will 
always employ the best person for any 
job opportunity.

At all relevant times.
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Recommendation Alternative Governance Practice and 
Reason for the Practice

Applicable Period

Recommendation 3.6: The 
board should establish 
appropriate protocols that 
set out the procedure to be 
followed if there is a takeover 
offer for the issuer including 
any communication between 
insiders and the bidder. The 
board should disclose the 
scope of independent advisory 
reports to shareholders. 
These protocols should 
include the option of 
establishing an independent 
takeover committee, and 
the likely composition 
and implementation of 
an independent takeover 
committee.

The GSH Board has established a 
takeover protocol that has been 
approved by the Board.
The protocol, however, does not include 
procedures to be followed if there is a 
takeover notice is received, including 
with regard to communication with 
insiders and the bidder or the option of 
establishing an independent takeover 
committee, and the likely composition 
and implementation of an independent 
takeover committee.
The Board proposes to review the 
takeover protocol during the accounting 
period ending 30 June 2021 to bring it 
into compliance with the NZX Corporate 
Governance Code recommendation. 
In the intervening period, if a takeover 
notice is received, the Board intends to 
seek specialist legal advice to ensure it 
complies with its requirements at law.

At all relevant times.

Recommendation 4.2: An 
issuer should make its code of 
ethics, board and committee 
charters and the policies 
recommended in the NZX 
Code, together with any other 
key governance documents, 
available on its website.

GSH updated is website on 30 
September 2019 to include its code of 
ethics, board and committee charters 
and policies recommended by the NZX 
Corporate Governance Code. 
GSH complied with Recommendation 4.2 
from 30 September 2019.

Between 1 July 2019 
and 30 September 
2019.

Recommendation 4.3: 
Financial reporting should be 
balanced, clear and objective. 
An issuer should provide non-
financial disclosure at least 
annually, including considering 
environmental, economic and 
social sustainability factors and 
practices. It should explain how 
operational or non-financial 
targets are measured. Non-
financial reporting should be 
informative, include forward 
looking assessments, and align 
with key strategies and metrics 
monitored by the board.

GSH did not provide non-financial 
disclosure during the year ended 30 June 
2020. 
Due to the size and nature of GSH and 
its business GSH does not report on 
environmental, economic and social 
sustainability factors and practices.

At all relevant times.

Recommendation 6.1:  An 
issuer should have a risk 
management framework for 
its business and the issuer’s 
board should receive and 
review regular reports. An 
issuer should report on the 
material risks facing the 
business and how these are 
being managed.

To ensure GSH remains strategically 
competitive in its business GSH has not 
publicly reported on specific material 
risks facing the business and how these 
are being managed

At all relevant times.

.corporate governance statement continued
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Recommendation Alternative Governance Practice and 
Reason for the Practice

Applicable Period

Recommendation 6.2: An 
issuer should disclose how 
it manages its health and 
safety risks and should 
report on their health and 
safety risks, performance and 
management.

Due to the size and nature of GSH, its 
business and the associated health and 
safety risks GSH does not currently report 
externally on Health & Safety. 
GSH has appointed an internal 
health and safety officer who receives 
appropriate training on an ongoing basis. 
GSH maintains an incident report and 
the Board receives reports on a monthly 
basis at the Board meeting.

At all relevant times.

Recommendation 7.1: The 
board should establish a 
framework for the issuer’s 
relationship with its external 
auditors. This should include 
certain procedures as outlined 
above.

Prior to 30 September 2019 the 
framework established by GSH for its 
relationship with its external auditors 
did not include an express procedure 
to ensure that the ability of the external 
auditors to carry out their statutory audit 
role is not impaired, or could reasonably 
be perceived to be impaired.
The ARMC Charter was revised on 30 
September 2019 to be in compliance with 
Recommendation 7.1.

Between 1 July 2019 
and 30 September 
2019

Recommendation 7.3: Internal 
audit functions should be 
disclosed.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 
GSH’s did not have an internal audit 
function and therefore no internal audit 
function was disclosed.

At all relevant times.

Recommendation 8.5: The 
board should ensure that 
the notices annual or special 
meetings of quoted equity 
security holders is posted 
on the issuer’s website as 
soon as possible and at least 
20 working days prior to the 
meeting.

During the year ended 30 June 2020 GSH 
posted notice of the 2019 annual meeting 
of quoted equity security holders on its 
website as soon as such notices were 
given.
That notice was not posted at least 
20 working days prior to the relevant 
meetings. 
GSH will endeavour to provide notices of 
annual and special meetings of quoted 
equity security holders at least 20 working 
days prior to the relevant meetings and 
post those notices on its website.

At all relevant times.



The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the financial statements and audit 
report for Good Spirits Hospitality Limited for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

The Directors are responsible for presenting financial statements in accordance with New 
Zealand law and generally accepted accounting practice, which present fairly the financial 
position of the Group as at 30 June 2020 and financial performance and cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.  

The Directors believe that proper accounting records have been kept which enable with 
reasonable accuracy, the determination of the financial position of the Group and facilitate 
compliance of the financial statements with the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013.

The directors consider that they have taken adequate steps to safeguard the assets of the 
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. Internal control procedures 
are also considered to be sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance as to the integrity 
and reliability of the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Group authorised these financial statements presented on 
pages 25 to 54 for issue on 25 September 2020. This Annual Report is dated XX October 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board 

Duncan Makeig     Matt Adams
Chairman     Independent Director
Good Spirits Hospitality Limited   Audit and Risk Management 
      Committee Chairman
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  2020 2019
 Note $ $

Revenue 7 23,493,763 25,429,189
Other Income 2u 1,365,567  -   
Changes in inventories of finished goods  (5,309,117) (6,038,198)
Employee benefits expense (Wage & salaries)  (7,896,895) (6,793,181)
Employee benefits expense (Kiwisaver contributions)  (112,364) (94,485)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 14 (841,061) (538,965)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13 (1,425,489)  -   
Interest income  5,521 5,274
Interest expense  (3,415,495) (3,087,544)
Bank fees  (23,058) (22,363)
Interest on leases 13 (1,299,133)  -   
Other expenses 9 (5,197,760) (7,227,538)

Significant items:   
Restructuring and advisory costs  (626,022) (188,830)
Acquisition costs 5  -    (345,216)
Gain on sale of Lynfield venue 5  -     87,494 
Property, plant and equipment impairment 14 (59,578) (255,651)
Goodwill impairment 6 (4,855,744)  -   

Operating profit / (loss) before income tax   (6,196,865) 929,986

Income tax (expense) / benefit 10 363,484 (721,615)

Profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations  (5,833,381) 208,371

Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued operations 
(attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company) net of tax   

Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued operations 24  -    (23,111)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Parent Company  (5,833,381) 185,260

Total comprehensive income / (losses) for the year attributable 
to the owners of the Parent Company arises from:   

Continuing operations  (5,833,381) 208,371
Discontinued operations   -    (23,111)

  (5,833,381) 185,260

Earnings per share / (losses) (EPS) from continuing and 
discontinued operations attributable to equity holders of 
the Parent Company during the year:  Cents Cents
Basic EPS from continuing operations 20 (11.56) 0.48
Basic EPS from discontinued operations  0.00 (0.05)

Basic EPS from profit for the year 20 (11.56) 0.43

Diluted EPS from profit for the year 20 (11.56) 0.34

profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

GOOD SPIRITS HOSPITALITY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

The above Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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  2020 2019
 Note $ $ 
   Restated (note 30)

ASSETS   
Cash and cash equivalents 29 2,796,583 1,302,038
Restricted cash 29 266,249 265,627
Trade and other receivables 11 118,850 74,375
Prepayments  320,716 306,203
Inventories 12 384,979 365,569
Current tax asset 15 104 861

Total current assets  3,887,481 2,314,673

Property, plant and equipment 14 5,167,299 3,632,110
Right-of-use assets 13 13,484,874  -   
Deferred tax asset 15 1,032,706 668,465
Intangible assets 6 28,893,109 33,748,853

Total non-current assets  48,577,988 38,049,428

TOTAL ASSETS  52,465,469 40,364,101

LIABILITIES   
Trade and other payables 17 3,031,280 2,635,439
Employee entitlements 17b 49,257 13,689
GST Payable  439,580 210,192
Lease liabilities 13 1,960,567  -   
Borrowings 18 715,187 791,567

Total current liabilities  6,195,872 3,650,888

Trade and other payables 17a 600,000 600,000
Employee entitlements 17b 589,003 439,388
Lease liabilities 13 12,072,774  -   
Borrowings  18 26,171,018 22,991,199

Total non-current liabilities  39,432,795 24,030,587

TOTAL LIABILITIES  45,628,667 27,681,475

NET ASSETS  6,836,802 12,682,626

EQUITY   
Share Capital  19 34,904,250 34,136,660
Share Capital Reserve 19  -    780,033
Accumulated Losses  (28,067,448) (22,234,067)

TOTAL EQUITY  6,836,802 12,682,626
   
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, who authorised these Financial Statements on 25 September 2020. 
 

Duncan Makeig Matt Adams 
Chairman Director

financial position.
AS AT 30 JUNE 2020

GOOD SPIRITS HOSPITALITY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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   SHARE  
  SHARE CAPITAL ACCUMULATED TOTAL 
  CAPITAL RESERVE LOSSES EQUITY
 Note $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018  34,136,660  780,033  (22,419,327) 12,497,366
Profit for the year (restated, note 30)   -     -    185,260 185,260

Total comprehensive profit for the year   -     -    185,260 185,260

Transactions with owners:     
Total contributions by / (distributions) to owners  -     -     -     -   

Balance at 30 June 2019 (restated, note 30)  34,136,660 780,033 (22,234,067) 12,682,626

Profit for the year   -     -    (5,833,381) (5,833,381)

Total comprehensive profit for the year   -     -    (5,833,381) (5,833,381)

Transactions with owners:     
Issue of shares from exercise of 
warrants after costs 19 767,590 (780,033)  -    (12,443)

Total contributions by / (distributions) to owners 767,590 (780,033)  -    (12,443)

Balance at 30 June 2020  34,904,250  -    (28,067,448) 6,836,802

changes in equity.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

GOOD SPIRITS HOSPITALITY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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  2020 2019
 Note $ $

Receipts from customers  23,434,775 25,257,530
Other Income  1,365,567  -   
Payments to suppliers and employees  (18,008,193) (20,261,964)
Interest received  5,521 5,274
Interest expenses  (1,384,447) (2,126,313)
Bank fees  (23,058)  -   
Taxes (paid) / received 15  -     -   

Cash flows from continuing operations prior to significant items   5,390,165 2,874,527

Cash outflows from restructuring and advisory costs  (626,022) (534,046)

Cash flows from continuing operations   4,764,143 2,340,481
Discontinued operations    -    (32,098)

Cash flows from discontinued operations    -    (32,098)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 27 4,764,143 2,308,383

   
Net proceeds on sale of Lynfield Business assets 5  -    215,699
Purchase of business assets 5  -    (4,248,450)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (2,527,801) (878,405)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities  (2,527,801) (4,911,156)

   
Repayment of borrowings  (833,333) (1,666,667)
Bond payment   -    (190,627)
Cash outflows from refinancing costs  (144,275) (111,683)
Interest paid on lease liabilities  (1,299,133)  -   
Principal paid on lease liabilities  (515,056)  -   
Bank borrowings drawn down  2,050,000 4,699,633

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities  (741,797) 2,730,656

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  1,494,545 127,883

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  1,302,038 1,174,155

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  2,796,583 1,302,038

Cash and bank balances 29 2,796,583 1,302,038

  2,796,583 1,302,038

cash flows.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

GOOD SPIRITS HOSPITALITY LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1 .  G E N E R A L  I N F O R M A T I O N

Good Spirits Hospitality Limited is an investment company with shareholdings in New 
Zealand businesses in the hospitality sector. 

Entities reporting

These financial statements are for Good Spirits Hospitality Limited (“GSH”) and its 
subsidiaries (together “the Group”).

The Group is considered a for profit-oriented entity for financial reporting purposes. 

Statutory base

Good Spirits Hospitality Limited is registered in New Zealand under the Companies Act 
1993 and is an FMC reporting entity under part 7 of the Financial Markets Conduct Act 
2013. The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of Part 7 and the NZX Listing Rules as applicable to the NZX Main Board.

Good Spirits Hospitality is domiciled and incorporated in New Zealand. Its registered office 
is at Ground Floor, Building B, Ascot Business Park, 95 Ascot Avenue, Greenlane, Auckland 
1051.

There have been no changes made to accounting policies unless otherwise stated. 

Going Concern        

For the year ended 30 June 2020 Good Spirits Hospitality Limited (‘the Company’) and its 
subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) reported a net loss before tax of $6.1m (2019: $929k 
profit) and its free cash flow (operating and investing cash flows) was an inflow of $2.2m 
(2019: ($2.6m) outflow). 

During the year, the Group successfully met its covenants for the first and second 
quarter. However, due to the unprecedented and challenging times of COVID-19 and the 
mandated closure of non-essential services the Group was forced to close its doors for a 
six-week period (late March to May 2020). Based on this closure the Group would have 
breached its banking covenants for the fourth quarter. However, Pacific Dawn Limited 
(PDL) provided a waiver for the measurement of all covenants as at 31 March and 30 June 
2020. 

Pacific Dawn Limited is the primary lender to the Company with outstanding facilities 
of approximately $27m together with a 19.9% shareholding in Good Spirits Hospitality 
Limited.         

Subsequent to year-end, the Group has renegotiated its banking facilities. Part of this 
re-negotiation requires the Group and Pacific Dawn Limited to consult and work together 
in good faith to agree to a new set of financial covenants that will apply to the Group on 
and from 31 March 2021. It has been agreed to defer the setting of a new covenant regime 
until the first half of calendar year 2021 to allow the Group to build up a trading history and 
increased cash position post the COVID-19 shutdown. The Group must propose revised 
financial covenants for consideration by Pacific Dawn Limited no later than 15 January 
2021. Furthermore, amortisation is replaced with a quarterly cash sweep for cash held over 
certain limits ($1m to June 21 and $500k from July 21) at quarter end.    



34

re
po

rt
 2

02
0

Directors of GSH are cognisant of the perceived uncertainty associated with no current 
formal agreement around covenants. However, Pacific Dawn Limited had been provided 
with financial forecasts (P&L and Cashflows) with the intention to reset the covenants 
before 31 March 2021. Pacific Dawn Limited in agreement with the Company’s board 
decided to postpone setting covenants until the impact of COVID-19 has dissipated and 
the Company continues to trade without any restrictions. Notably, the actions of Pacific 
Dawn Limited, namely the provision of waivers during COVID-19 lockdowns and Pacific 
Dawn’s desire to acquire more shares in the Company indicate a strong willingness to 
work with the Company in the future. Further, considering Pacific Dawn Limited is a major 
shareholder in the Company, the GSH board are confident that this matter will be resovled 
before the due date. Further, it is emphasised the decision to postpone the setting of 
covenants is for positive reasons as it allows both the Company and Pacific Dawn Limited 
to set the regime in a stable environment post COVID-19.

The directors have approved the forecasts and are comfortable that the Group and Pacific 
Dawn Limited will agree appropriate banking terms. As forecasts are sensitive to numerous 
external factors (including COVID-19) that are beyond the Company’s control, results may 
vary to that forecast, accordingly the Board acknowledge there is an element of uncertainty 
in the forecasts.

Given the above it is the considered view of the Board of Directors after making enquiries 
that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to 
continue operations for the foreseeable future and that the Group will remain in 
compliance with the re-negotiated banking facility. For this reason, the Board continue to 
adopt the going concern assumption in preparing the financial statements for the year 
ended 30 June 2020.

The potential for COVID to impact the Groups ability to achieve forecasts and the 
requirement to formalise a yet to be determined covenant suite for the bank facilities 
within the next 12 months, represent material uncertainties which may cast significant 
doubt on the Groups ability to continue as a Going Concern.

The Directors have reached their going concern conclusion having regard to circumstances 
which they consider likely to affect the Group during the period of one year from the date 
of approval of the financial statements and to circumstances which it knows will occur 
after that date which could affect the validity of the going concern assumption. The key 
considerations the Board have reviewed are set out below:

a) Ongoing Bank Support (Pacific Dawn Limited)

i. The Board considers the Pacific Dawn facility, as renegotiated after year end 
will be available throughout the year to support the Groups forecast trading 
operations. 

ii. The ongoing verbal support, as documented in the board minutes and that Pacific 
Dawn Limited is a major shareholder in Good Spirits Hospitality Limited.

iii. That the Group and Pacific Dawn Limited will be able to negotiate an appropriate 
covenant regime in the first half of calendar year 2021.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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b) Operating results (June 2020 to early August 2020) before second COVID-19 
lockdown were better than management’s expectation and forecasts 
Prior to the re-opening post the COVID-19 lockdown the Group prepared new 
forecasts based on several assumptions. The Directors have a reasonable expectation 
that the Group can achieve these forecasts. Reasoning for this includes the fact that 
current trading is better than that forecasted. The forecasts are considered realistic in 
order for the Group to manage its working capital requirements.

c) Current lockdown (COVID-19) 
Management have updated the forecast and assumptions (Level 3 until end of August 
& Level 2 until mid-September) and are comfortable that the presented forecast will 
not materially change. This is based on the improved actual results vs budget until 
August and the additional wage subsidy being received.

The financial statements do not include any adjustments that may be required to 
reflect that situation should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern. Such 
adjustments may include realising assets at other than the amounts at which they are 
recorded in the financial statements. In addition, the Group may have to provide for 
further liabilities that may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as 
current.

Whilst there are inherent uncertainties as described above, it is the Directors view that the 
Group will be able to pay its debts and commitments as they fall due in the 12 months 
from the date of this letter. 

Commitments

The Directors are comfortable the Group’s commitments (if any) that will be incurred in the 
next 12 months are able to be met out of its established facilities and cash flows from its 
operating activities.

Contingencies

There are no contingencies at year-end. The Group does not consider that any contingency 
affects the appropriateness of the going concern assumption in the preparation of the 
financial report.       

2 .  S U M M A R Y  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

(a) Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements 
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods 
presented, unless otherwise stated. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice in New Zealand, which is the New Zealand equivalent to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). They also comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards.
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Historical Cost Convention 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all 
subsidiaries of Good Spirits Hospitality Limited (“Parent”) as at the reporting date. Good 
Spirits Hospitality Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial 
statements as the “Group” or the consolidated entity.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an 
entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements using the acquisition 
method of consolidation. They are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Parent. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases or 
they cease to be part of the Group. 

The results of the entities acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the profit 
or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as 
appropriate.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The 
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets 
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquire and the equity 
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any 
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are 
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the 
acquiree’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the 
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at 
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration 
that is deemed to be a financial asset or financial liability is recognised in accordance with 
IFRS 9 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement 
is accounted for within equity.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between 
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary, 
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s 
accounting policies.

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision-making body. The chief operating decision-making body 

.notes to the financial statements continued
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responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of operating segments is 
the Board of Directors.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of GSH is New Zealand Dollars ($). Transactions in foreign 
currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying exchange rates 
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are re-translated at the exchange rate at reporting date. Non-monetary 
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of 
goods and services, excluding Goods and Services Tax (GST) and discounts, to the extent 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of the 
revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue consists of bar sales, gaming income and door cover charges. Bar sales are 
recognised when the Group sells to the customer and are usually in cash and the recorded 
revenue is the amount of the sale, net of any applicable discounts. Gaming income is 
recognised in revenue in the period to which it relates. Door cover charges are recognised 
when they are received. All revenue streams are recognised at a point in time.

(f) Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, less directly 
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Loans and borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has 
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting date.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position and statement of cash 
flows comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity 
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Short term deposits with an original 
maturity of greater than three months are also included within cash and cash equivalents if 
the term deposit can be terminated at an earlier date, without incurring penalties.

Restricted cash comprises deposits held by the BNZ Bank of behalf of GSH.

(h) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less an allowance for impairment. The 
Group applies the NZ IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses 
using a lifetime expected credit loss provision for trade receivables and contract assets. To 
measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade receivables and contract assets 
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are grouped based on similar credit risk and aging. The contract assets have similar risk 
characteristics to the trade receivables for similar types of contracts.

The expected loss rates are based on the Group’s historical credit losses experienced over 
the three year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for 
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the Group’s 
customers. The Group has identified the gross domestic product (GDP), unemployment 
rate and inflation rate as the key macroeconomic factors in New Zealand, where the Group 
operates.

(i) Inventories

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost, determined on a 
weighted average basis, and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale. Supplier rebates are recognised against inventories when the goods are received 
by the bars.

( j) Goods and Service Tax

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are 
stated exclusive of GST. All items in the statement of financial position are stated net of 
GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which include GST invoiced.

(k) Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s 
taxable income adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributed to 
temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts in the financial statements.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the current period’s taxable income. The 
tax rates and laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively 
enacted at reporting date.

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity 
are also recognised directly in equity.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or 
liability in the consolidated statement of financial position differs from its tax base, except 
for differences arising on: 

• The initial recognition of goodwill 

• The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business 
combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting or taxable 
profit, and

• Investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements where the Group is able to control 
the timing of the reversal of the difference and it is probable that the difference will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

.notes to the financial statements continued
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Recognition of deferred tax assets is restricted to those instances where it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the difference can be utilised. 

The amount of the asset or liability is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the deferred 
tax liabilities/(assets) are settled/(recovered). 

When there is uncertainty concerning the Group’s filing position regarding the tax bases of 
assets or liabilities, the taxability of certain transactions or other tax-related assumptions, 
then the Group: 

• Considers whether uncertain tax treatments should be considered separately, or 
together as a group, based on which approach provides better predictions of the 
resolution; 

• Determines if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax 
treatment; and 

• If it is not probable that the uncertain tax treatment will be accepted, measure the 
tax uncertainty based on the most likely amount or expected value, depending on 
whichever method better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. This measurement 
is required to be based on the assumption that each of the tax authorities will 
examine amounts they have a right to examine and have full knowledge of all related 
information when making those examinations. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right 
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to 
taxes levied by the same tax authority on either: 

• The same taxable group company, or 

• Different group entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and liabilities 
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each 
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
expected to be settled or recovered. 

(l) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost, including costs directly 
attributable to bring the asset to its working condition, less accumulated depreciation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. Any expenditure that increases the economic benefits 
derived from the asset is capitalised. Expenditure on repairs and maintenance that does 
not increase the economic benefits is expensed in the period it occurs.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the diminishing value 
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. 
The rates are as follows:

Fixtures plant and office equipment 8 - 50%
Vehicles 12 - 30%
Computer equipment 20 - 50%
Lease improvements 4 - 20%
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, 
at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater that its estimated recoverable 
amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with 
carrying amount. These are included in the profit and loss component of the statement of 
comprehensive income.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
further future economic benefits are expected from its use.

(m) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration transferred in an acquisition over the 
fair value of the Group’s interest in the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 
is allocated to each cash generating unit (CGU) or groups of CGU’s that is expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each CGU or group of CGU’s to which the 
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is 
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the CGU level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is 
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value 
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not 
subsequently reversed.

(n) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group tests the carrying amounts of its tangible 
and intangible assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to 
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation 
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
and value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an 
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and due to their short term nature 
they are not discounted. They represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the 
Group by suppliers in the ordinary course of business prior to the end of the financial year 
that are unpaid and arise when the Group become obliged to make future payments in 
respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured and are 
usually paid within normal business trading terms.

(p) Employee Entitlements

Liabilities for wages, salaries and annual leave are recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits and measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
The employee benefit liability expected to be wholly settled within twelve months from 
reporting date is recognised in current liabilities.

(q) Leases

The Group has adopted NZ IFRS 16, which replaces NZ IAS 17 Leases and removes the 
distinction between operating and finance leases for lessees, in the current financial year. 

NZ IFRS 16 requires the Group to recognise most leases, where it is a lessee, in the 
consolidated statement of financial position, similar to the previous finance lease model. 
This has resulted in the recognition of ‘right-of-use’ assets and related lease liability 
balances. Rental payments for leases previously classified as operating leases for property 
have moved from being included in operating expenses, to depreciation and finance 
expenses. The impact on net earnings before income tax of an individual lease over its 
term remains the same, however, the new standard results in a higher interest expense in 
the early years of a lease and lower in the later years, compared with the previous straight-
line expense profile of an operating lease. A summary of the impact of the new standard 
on the Group’s financial statements is provided in note 13. 

In applying NZ IFRS 16 the Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases 
of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use 
asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an expense in 
the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(r) Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue 
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(s) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary 
shares. Basic EPS is computed based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
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outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed based on the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares plus the effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding 
during the period.

(t) Discontinued operations / assets held for sale 

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash 
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which:

• represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

• is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or 
geographical area of operations; or

• is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to re-sale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the 
operation meets the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of 
financial performance and statement of comprehensive income is re-presented as if the 
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their 
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is 
considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to the 
remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to 
inventories, financial assets and employee benefit assets, which continue to be measured 
in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial 
classification as held-for-sale or held-for-distribution and subsequent gains and losses on 
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer 
equity accounted.

Where operations have been shut the remaining assets are held for realisation and have 
been written down to their expected recoverable value.

(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance 
that the grant will be received and the Company will apply with all attached conditions. The 
Company currently receives Government grants in the form of COVID-19 related employee 
wage subsidies received from the Ministry of Social Development (MSD).  
 

Revenue recognised by the Company include: 2020 2019
 $ $

COVID-19 employee wage subsidy 1,365,567 -
    

.notes to the financial statements continued
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(v) Non-GAAP reporting measures     

Additional reporting measures have been referenced in the notes to the financial 
statements. The Directors consider the following non-GAAP measures are relevant to the 
understanding of the Group’s financial performance. 

• EBITDA before significant items (a non-GAAP measure) represents earnings before 
income taxes (a GAAP measure), interest income, interest expense and bank fees, 
depreciation and amortisation, excluding significant items, as reported in the financial 
statements.

• Total comprehensive income from continued operations after tax, excluding significant 
items (a non-GAAP measure) represents profit for the year (a GAAP measure) from 
continuing operations, less tax, excluding significant items.

 2020 2019
 $ $ 
  Restated (note 30)

Profit for the year (after tax) (5,833,381) 185,260
Significant items (net of tax):

Restructuring and advisory costs 450,736 155,639
Other Income (1,365,567)  -   
Acquisition costs  -    306,124
Gain on sale of Lynfield  -    (62,996)
Fixed assets and goodwill impairment 42,896 184,069

Discontinued items (net of tax): 
(Loss)/gain on sale of the Mad Butcher Business  -    23,111

Total comprehensive income from continued 
operations after tax, excluding significant items (6,705,315) 791,207

(w) COVID-19 related rent concessions

In June 2020, the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board provided a practical expedient 
to NZ IFRS 16. The expedient permits Tier-1 and Tier-2 reporting entities not to assess 
whether rent concessions that occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic 
and meet specified conditions as lease modifications and, instead, to account for those 
rent concessions as reassessments. The Group has elected to adopt the expedient.

(x) Significant items

Transactions are classified as significant items when they meet certain criteria approved 
by the Group’s Audit and Risk Committee. Significant items are determined in accordance 
with the principles of consistency, relevance and clarity. Transactions considered for 
classification as significant items include restructuring costs; acquisition and disposal costs; 
impairment or reversal of impairment of assets; business integration; and transactions 
or events outside of the Group’s ongoing operations that have a significant impact on 
reported profit. 
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3 .  C R I T I C A L  A C C O U N T I N G  E S T I M A T E S ,  J U D G E M E N T S 
 A N D  A S S U M P T I O N S       
In application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the Group’s critical judgements and estimates:

Carrying value of goodwill 

Impairment tests are performed by the Group to assess the carrying value of goodwill. 
These tests include making assumptions in relation to the future performance and growth 
as well as determining the period of expected benefits and appropriate discount rates in 
the value in use models. Refer to Note 6 for key assumptions made.

The carrying value of the Group’s assets principally rely on the operating performance and 
an expectation of continued growth in bar sales. If those growth expectations change, or 
the expected profitability of the Group otherwise changes, there may be impairments of 
the Group and/or Group’s assets in future periods.

The outbreak of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) was declared by the World Health 
Organisation as a ‘Global Pandemic’ on 11 March 2020. Since that time there has been an 
increased adverse impact on global financial markets. There have been travel restrictions 
implemented by many countries and economic stimulus packages announced by most 
governments. Market activity is being impacted in almost every sector and there has been 
a major reduction in hospitality activity. It is difficult at the current time to determine if this 
is a short term reduction or is indicative of a longer term change in consumer behaviour.

The impact of COVID-19 has been estimated by management and incorporated into 
the forecast revenues which form part of the value in use models used for goodwill 
impairment testing.

The goodwill impairment tests assume continuity in leases which are due to expire within 
the forecast period upon which Discount Cash Flow 
calculations are prepared. 

Management and the board allocates head-office 
costs which are believed to be directly attributable to 
the running of the bars and ought to be included in 
the assessment of the Cash Generating Unit’s carrying 
amount. Head office costs which are not deemed to 
relate to the respective bars, are not allocated to Cash 
Generating Units as part of impairment tests.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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Going concern

The Directors have disclosed in note 1 the uncertainties in relation to the going concern 
assumption and the basis on which the Directors have concluded that the Group is a going 
concern. 

Tax

The Group has recognised in note 15 the deferred tax benefit of tax losses on the basis of 
the going concern assumption and the satisfaction of shareholder continuity requirements 
of the tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary 
differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the directors believe it is probable that 
these assets will be recovered.

Interest bearing liabilities

The Directors have disclosed in note 18 the capitalisation of financing costs against 
borrowings, which will be amortised to interest expense over the three year life of the 
facility.         

Provision for lease obligations

The Directors have disclosed in note 17A the estimated provision for lease obligations 
which covers the make good liability at the end of a lease.

COVID-19 pandemic

In December 2019, a new virus, COVID-19, was detected in Wuhan, China. The virus was 
soon common in other countries and on 11 March 2020 the World Health Organization 
declared that the outbreak should be considered a pandemic. 

The result of this pandemic has been a substantial reduction in economic activity 
throughout the world, as governments have introduced measures (such as the closure of 
national borders, the closure of non-essential businesses, the cancellation of public events 
and the imposition of restrictions on individuals) in an attempt to reduce transmission of 
the virus. 

In late March 2020, the New Zealand Government ordered a four-week lockdown, 
during which non-essential businesses and organisations were not allowed to operate 
and individuals (other than essential workers or those undertaking essential business) 
were required to stay at home. As a result of the lockdown, community transmission of 
COVID-19 was eliminated. In late April 2020, the lockdown period ended and the New 
Zealand Government started gradually easing the restrictions that had been placed on 
businesses, organisations and individuals, although substantial restrictions remained 
at the border. During the initial four-week lockdown period, the Company was unable 
to operate, which resulted in revenue falling below forecast levels. Since the end of that 
lockdown period, the Company has been able to operate, but has experienced reduced 
demand due to the overall reduction in economic activity caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic. However, as outlined more fully in Note 28, in mid-August 2020, community 
transmission of COVID-19 was detected in Auckland, and the New Zealand Government 
again placed restrictions on businesses, organisations and individuals within New Zealand. 
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At the time of signing these financial statements, the restrictions put in place in mid-
August 2020 has been lifted and the Group is now operational. However, these restrictions 
have further reduced the Company’s revenue. The pandemic has also impacted a number 
of financial statement areas, as outlined in the table below: 

Financial statement area Summary of COVID-19 impacts Note

Going concern The directors have concluded that the Company 
is a going concern, but there are uncertainties in 
relation to that conclusion. 

1

Government grants The Group received the funds from the New 
Zealand Government’s wage subsidy scheme, 
income from the wage subsidy has been 
accounted for under NZ IAS 20 - Accounting 
for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance.

2u

Rent 
abatements 

The Group has elected to adopt the COVID-19-
Related Rent Concession practical expedient 
issued by New Zealand External Reporting Board in 
June 2020.

2w

Property, plant and 
equipment  

Property, plant and equipment have been written 
down to their impaired amounts. 

14

Goodwill Goodwill is valued using the value in use 
model.  Due to expectations of reduced future 
profitability, value in use has fallen below carrying 
value and consequently goodwill has been 
impaired.

6

NZ IFRS 16 Leases        

In the process of adopting NZ IFRS 16 Leases a number of judgements and estimates have 
been made. The Group has assumed that virtually all extension options on leases will be 
exercised which is consistent with the business model and past practice as the Group has 
consistently exercised rights of renewal.

The Group has estimated the incremental borrowing rates (IBR) based on a build up 
approach, comprised of a base rate plus a credit margin. In calculating the appropriate 
IBRs the Group has considered the following factors:

•  The economic environment in which the leases are located. All leases are located in 
New Zealand and this is represented in the IBR by referencing the New Zealand swap 
curve as the base rate in our calculation.

• The credit worthiness of the lease company. To derive this, we have considered the 
Company’s actual credit margin on current borrowings and observable corporate yield 
curves.

• The asset quality is considered through an assumption as to what proportion would be 
funded through secured and unsecured borrowings.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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The table below summarises the Group’s calculated IBR range for three lease portfolios: 
The midpoint values have been used in the calculation.

Lease Term Low High Midpoint
3 Years 7.2% 7.5% 7.3%
9 to 14 years 8.2% 9.0% 8.6%
19 to 22 years 9.4% 10.1% 9.7%

4 .  N E W  S T A N D A R D S ,  A M E N D M E N T S  A N D  I N T E R P R E T A T I O N

Standards, amendments and interpretations

(a) New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2019

New standards impacting the Group that will be adopted in the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2020, and which have given rise to changes in the 
Group’s accounting policies are:

• NZ IFRS 16 Leases (NZ IFRS 16); and

• NZ IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (NZ IFRIC 23)

Details of the impact these two standards have had are given in note 13. Other new and 
amended standards and Interpretations issued by the NZ IASB that will apply for the first 
time in the next annual financial statements are not expected to impact the Group as they 
are either not relevant to the Group’s activities or require accounting which is consistent 
with the Group’s current accounting policies.

(b) New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which 
have been issued by the NZ IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the 
group has decided not to adopt early. The following amendments are all effective for the 
period beginning 1 January 2020:

• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors (Amendment – Definition of Material)

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendment – Definition of Business)

• Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1, which clarify the criteria used to 
determine whether liabilities are classified as current or non-current. The NZ IASB has 
released equivalent amendment to NZ IAS 1 for periods beginning on 1 January 2022. These 
amendments clarify that current or non-current classification is based on whether an entity 
has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. The amendments also clarify that ‘settlement’ 
includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity instruments unless the obligation 
to transfer equity instruments arises from a conversion feature classified as an equity 
instrument separately from the liability component of a compound financial instrument.

Good Spirits Hospitality Limited is currently assessing the impact of these new accounting 
standards and amendments. The Group does not believe that the amendments to IAS 1 
will have a significant impact on the classification of its liabilities, as the conversion feature 
in its convertible debt instruments is classified as an equity instrument and therefore, does 
not affect the classification of its convertible debt as a non-current liability.
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5 .  A C Q U I S I T I O N S  A N D  D I S P O S A L S
During the year the Group did not acquire or dispose of any business. 

The Better Bar Company Limited (BBC) Acquisitions

During the year the Group did not purchase any new sites (2019: $4,248,450, purchase 
of Citizen Park and Union Post). In 2020 the Group expensed $nil in regards to the 
acquisitions of the bars. (2019: $345,216).

BBC Disposals

During the year the Group did not dispose of any business. In 2019 the group recognised 
a profit on sale (Lynfield) after asset write-downs and costs of $87,494. The investing 
proceeds were $215,699, after allowing for non cash write-downs of assets.

6 .  I N T A N G I B L E  A S S E T S   
 Goodwill Total
 $ $
Year ended 30 June 2020
Opening balance net book value  33,748,853  33,748,853
Impairment of goodwill (4,855,744) (4,855,744)

Closing net book value 28,893,109 28,893,109

At 30 June 2020  
Cost  33,748,853  33,748,853
Accumulated impairment (4,855,744) (4,855,744)

Net book value  28,893,109   28,893,109 

Year ended 30 June 2019  
Opening balance net book value  29,980,079  29,980,079
Acquisition of businesses 3,768,774 3,768,774

Closing net book value  33,748,853  33,748,853

At 30 June 2019  
Cost 33,748,853 33,748,853
Accumulated impairment  -     -   

Net book value 33,748,853 33,748,853

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of The BBC and subsequent bars purchased. It has been 
allocated to it’s nine cash generating units (CGU). A CGU is a bar or a group of bars that 
share operational facilities. For all CGUs on an annual basis, the recoverable amount of 
the goodwill is determined based on value in use calculations for each CGU to which the 
goodwill relates. Goodwill is tested for impairment in June of each year. 

The value in use calculations are initially based on financial budgets and business plans 
approved by the Directors. Cash flows beyond this period are extrapolated using the 
estimated growth rates below. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average 
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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As a direct consequence of COVID-19 and its impact on the Hospitality industry, the Group 
undertook a review of key assumptions in estimating carrying values of relevant CGUs. 
The review considered the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on overall macroeconomic 
outlook and projected discount and growth rates as at the reporting date. This review 
resulted in the Group reducing initial forecast projections and an increased discount rate 
from prior years due to the uncertainty in world markets. In addition, the Group assumed 
that leases will be able to be renewed on similar terms to those currently in place.

The impact of COVID-19 has been estimated by management and incorporated into 
the forecast revenues which form part of the value in use models used for goodwill 
impairment testing. Based on the assumptions below and the COVID-19 impact the 
Directors resolved to impair goodwill of $4,855,744 across the following CGU’s: 

 2020 2019
 $ $
Botany Commons  3,421,936   -   
Danny Doolan’s  303,977  -
The Cav  943,240   -   
Citizen Park  186,591   -   

 4,855,744  -   

The key assumptions used for the value in use calculations for all CGU’s are as follows: 

 2020 2019
 $ $
Pre tax discount rate 19.9% 13.9%
Cash flow forecast period 3 years 3 years
Terminal growth rate 1.0% 1.0%
Annual sales growth rate 0% - 1% 0% - 1%
   

 2020 2019
 $ $
Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGU’s: 
Danny Doolan’s 11,397,264 11,701,241
O’Hagan’s 6,083,170 6,083,170
The Cav 3,910,060 4,853,300
Botany Commons 280,099 3,702,035
Doolan Brothers Ellerslie 3,234,170 3,234,170
Citizen Park 2,166,272 2,352,863
Union Post 1,415,911 1,415,911
C&B Hamilton 406,163 406,163

 28,893,109 33,748,853
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.notes to the financial statements continued

7 .  R E V E N U E
 2020 2019
 $ $
Revenue of bars owned on a like for like basis  

Auckland 21,797,360 20,658,269
Hamilton 1,696,403 2,041,207

Revenue of bars purchased in the period or prior period  
Auckland  -    1,474,745

Revenue of bars sold in the period or prior period  
Auckland  -    1,254,968

 23,493,763 25,429,189

8 .  S E G M E N T  R E P O R T I N G
The Group is organised into the following business segments, predominantly reflecting 
trading divisions in the Group:

The Better Bar Company (BBC)

This segment includes the business activities of The Better Bar Company Limited which 
operates a chain of eight bars based in Auckland and one based in Hamilton. 

Other

Includes the activities of the Parent Company.

The Board of Directors (“The Board”) continues to be the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (“CODM”) for the Group as it is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance across the Group. For each of the entities the Board reviews management 
reports on a monthly basis.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. 
Performance is measured based on segment EBITDA before significant items as included 
in the management reports that are reviewed by the Board. Segment EBITDA before 
significant items is used to measure performance as the Board believes that such 
information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to 
other entities that operate within these industries. 



51

re
po

rt
 2

02
0

Statement of Comprehensive Income

   2020 2019
   EBITDA   EBITDA 
   before   before
   significant   significant 
 Revenue $ EBITDA $ items $ Revenue $ EBITDA $ items $

The BBC 23,493,763 921,029 7,261,841 25,429,189 5,607,313 6,120,686

Other  -    (1,544,669) (918,647)  -    (1,033,729) (844,899)

Group 23,493,763 (623,640) 6,343,194 25,429,189 4,573,584 5,275,787

Significant and 
other items

Restructuring and 
advisory costs   -    (626,022)   -    (188,830)

Depreciation of 
right-of-use assets   -    (1,425,489)   -     -   

Interest on leases  (1,299,133) (1,299,133)   -     -   

Acquisition costs   -     -      -    (345,216)

Gain on sale of 
Lynfield venue   -     -      -    87,494

Property, plant and 
equipment impairment   -    (59,578)   -    (255,651)

Goodwill impairment   -    (4,855,744)   -     -   

Depreciation and 
amortisation  (841,061) (841,061)  (538,965) (538,965)

Finance expense 
(net of income)  (3,433,032) (3,433,032)  (3,104,633) (3,104,633)

Profit / (loss) before 
income tax from 
continuing operations  (6,196,865) (6,196,865)  929,986 929,986
 

Statement of Financial  Position

  2020 2019
 Segment Segment Segment Segment 
 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities 
 $ $ $ $

Restated (note 30)

The BBC 52,465,469 48,165,801 39,154,372 27,037,276
Other  -    (2,537,134) 1,209,729 644,199

Group 52,465,469 45,628,667 40,364,101 27,681,475

The Group incurred professional fees of $376,564 in regard to restructuring activities. 
Included in this was $40,752 of professional fees incurred on potential acquisition targets 
that were discontinued as they did not meet our strict acquisition criteria. (2019: $188,830 
and included in this was $70,741 of professional fees incurred on potential acquisition 
targets that were discontinued).
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Geographical

GSH and its subsidiaries operate within New Zealand, and derived no revenue from 
foreign countries for the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: nil).

Information about major customers

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 
June 2020 (2019: nil).   

Capital expenditure (including software)
Capital expenditure for each reporting segment for the year:    

 2020 2019
 $ $
The BBC 2,527,797 1,046,013

 2,527,797 1,046,013

9 .  O T H E R  E X P E N S E S     
 2020 2019
 $ $
Other expenses include:

Advertising and marketing costs 965,472 1,156,117
Property expenses (including lease costs 2019) 1,623,293 3,791,764
Professional and other advisory costs 444,536 435,030
Equipment hire (Short term lease) 38,075 25,539
Insurance 207,137 114,189
Travel expenses 116,093 106,655
Other 1,803,154 1,598,244

 5,197,760 7,227,538

Remuneration to auditors included:   
Audit services  
Audit of the financial statements                       85,000  -   

Other services  
Advisory services (1) 17,500  -   
Tax compliance services                                     25,000  -   

Fees paid to previous auditors – PWC   
Audit services  
Audit of the financial statements  -    137,000
Additional audit fees in relation to 2018  -    12,000

Other services  
Due diligence and model review services 7,875 45,519
Tax compliance services 35,860 58,300

Total remuneration paid or payable to auditors 171,235 252,819
  
(1) Fees relate to debt restructuring advice provided to the group and fees relating to a due diligence assignment 
which did not proceed. Both services were provided prior to BDO Auckland’s appointment as auditors.

.notes to the financial statements continued
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1 0 .  T A X  E X P E N S E    
 2020 2019
  $ $ 
 Note  Restated (note 30)

The income tax expense consists of the following:  

Profit / (loss) before income tax from continuing operations (6,196,865) 929,986

Income tax expense calculated at 28% (2019: 28%) (1,735,122) 260,396
Non-deductible expenses 1,753,545 177,751
Tax in respect of prior years 452 283,482
Non-assessable income (382,359) (14)

Tax expense / (benefit)  (363,484) 721,615

Current tax expense 757 159
Deferred tax charge / (benefit) 15 (364,241) 721,456

 (363,484) 721,615

Imputation credits available for subsequent 
reporting periods based on a tax rate of 28% (2019: 28%)  -     -   

1 1 .  T R A D E  A N D  O T H E R  R E C E I VA B L E S
 2020 2019
 $ $
Trade receivables 118,850 74,375
Provision for doubtful debts  -     -   

Total current 118,850 74,375

The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates their carrying value.   

Aging of trade and other receivables

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:  

 2020 2019
 $ $
Current 118,850 74,375

Total 118,850 74,375

Provision for doubtful debts
Opening balance  -     -   
Receivables written off during the year  -     -   

As at 30 June 2020  -     -   

There is no expected credit loss provision as at 30 June 2020.   



54

re
po

rt
 2

02
0

1 2 .  I N V E N T O R I E S  
   2020 2019
   $ $
Raw materials   88,841 95,128

Food & Beverages   296,138 270,441

   384,979  365,569 

1 3 .  L E A S E S   
   2020 2019
  Properties Vehicles Total 

   $ $
Right-of-use assets
Transition balance on 1 July 2019 14,821,934 88,429 14,910,363  -   
Depreciation (1,390,436) (35,053) (1,425,489)  -   

Balance as at 30 June 2020 13,431,498 53,376 13,484,874  -   

   2020 2019
  Properties Vehicles Total 

   $ $
Lease liabilities
Transition balance on 1 July 2019 14,821,934 88,429 14,910,363  -   
Modification adjustment (361,966)  -    (361,966)  -   
Interest for the period 1,293,385 5,748 1,299,133  -   
Lease payments   (1,776,749) (37,440) (1,814,189)  -   

Balance 30 June 2020 13,976,604 56,737 14,033,341  -   

Current    1,960,567  -   

Non-current   12,072,774  -   

   14,033,341  -   

   2020 
   $  
Short-term lease expense    49,750  
 
  Between Between Between 
 Up to 3 3 and 12 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 
As at 30 June 2020 months months years years 5 years

Lease liabilities 515,209 1,545,629 2,018,065 5,434,606 13,915,122

.notes to the financial statements continued
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NZ IFRS 16 distinguishes between leases and service contracts on the basis of whether the 
use of an identified asset is controlled by the customer. Control is considered to exist if the 
customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of 
an identified asset and the right to direct the use of that asset. 

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except 
for: 

• Leases of low value assets; and   

• Leases with a term of 12 months or less. 

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to 
the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate 
inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable, in 
which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is 
used. Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if 
they are dependent on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease 
liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. 
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate. 

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability may also include:  

• amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee; 

• the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Group if it is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option; 

• any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been 
estimated on the basis of termination option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for 
any lease incentives received, and increased for: 

• lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease; 

• initial direct costs incurred; and 

• the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to 
dismantle, remove or restore the leased asset. 

Subsequent to initial measurement, lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged 
at a constant rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. 
Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the 
lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter 
than the lease term. 

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for example, it 
re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), 
it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over 
the revised term, which are discounted at a revised discount rate. The carrying value of 
lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments 
dependent on a rate or index is revised. In both cases an equiva lent adjustment is made 
to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being 
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. 
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.notes to the financial statements continued

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the 
accounting depends on the nature of the modification:

• if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an 
amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use 
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease in accordance with the 
above policy

• in all other cases where the renegotiation increases the scope of the lease (whether 
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being leased), 
the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the modification 
date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount 

•  if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the 
carrying amount of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the 
same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease with any 
difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to 
ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over 
the renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate 
applicable on the modification date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same 
amount. 

For contracts that both convey a right to the Group to use an identified asset and require 
services to be provided to the Group by the lessor, the Group has elected to account for 
the entire contract as a lease, i.e. it does allocate any amount of the contractual payments 
to, and account separately for, any services provided by the supplier as part of the contract.

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases 11 properties in New Zealand. In New Zealand it is customary for lease 
contracts to provide payments to increase each year by inflation and in others to be reset 
periodically to market rental rates. The Group also leases motor vehicles.

As standard industry practice, the Group’s property lease are subject to market rent 
reviews. A 1% increase in these payments would result in an additional $18,874 outflow 
compared to the current period’s cash outflow.

The Group has adopted NZ IFRS 16 from 1 July 2019 but has not restated comparatives for 
the previous reporting period as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the 
standard. 

On adoption of NZ IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases which 
had previously been classified as operating leases under the principles of NZ IAS 17 Leases. 
These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, 
discounted using the incremental borrowing rates applicable to each lease as of 1 July 2019.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 July 
2019 was 7.9%.
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The aggregate lease liability recognised in the Statement of financial position at 1 July 
2019 and the Group’s operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 can be reconciled as 
follows: 

  2020
  $
Operating lease commitments reconciliation  
Minimum operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019   13,549,889
Short-term lease not recognised under NZ IFRS 16  (32,177)
Lease payments from renewal options reasonable expected to be used  11,535,353

Total undiscounted lease payments  25,053,065
Effect of discounting those lease commitments  (10,142,702)

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019  14,910,363

In applying the modified retrospective approach, the Group has taken advantage of the 
following practical expedients: 

• Initial direct costs have not been included in the measurement of the right-of-use 
asset as at the date of initial application;

• Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as opposed to 
preparing an impairment review under NZ IAS 36 as at the date of initial application; 
and

• Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases 
with less than 12 months of lease term remaining as of the date of initial application.

The following table presents the impact of adopting NZ IFRS 16 on the consolidated 
statement of financial position as at 1 July 2019:  

  2019
  $
Right of use assets  14,910,363
Lease liabilities   (14,910,363)

Net reduction in retained earnings   -   

Prior year operating NZ IAS 17 comparable  
Lease commitments as follows: 
Within one year  2,029,507
One to two years  1,997,727
Two to five years  4,236,373
More than five years  5,286,282

Minimum operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019    13,549,889 
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.notes to the financial statements continued

1 4 .  P R O P E R T Y,  P L A N T  &  E Q U I P M E N T
  Fixtures, 
  Plant, 
 Work In Office Computer Lease Total 
 Progress Equipment Equipment Improvements 
 $ $ $ $ $

Year ended 30 June 2020
Opening balance net 
book value  499,579   1,497,040   26,105   1,609,386   3,632,110
Impairment of property,  
plant and equipment  -     (59,553)  (24)  -     (59,578)
Additions  34,000   866,092   27,139   1,600,566   2,527,797 
WIP capitalised  (499,579)  114,400   -     385,179   -   
Disposals  -     (91,601)  (357)  (12)  (91,970)
Depreciation charge  -     (436,985)  (20,544)  (383,532)  (841,061)

Closing net book value  34,000   1,889,393   32,319   3,211,587   5,167,299 
      
At 30 June 2020      
Cost  34,000   3,284,795   75,659   4,571,709   7,966,163 
Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment  -     (1,485,174)  (43,340)  (1,270,349)  (2,798,864)

Net book value  34,000   1,799,621   32,319   3,301,359   5,167,299 
      
Year ended 30 June 2019      
Opening balance net book value  -     970,327   8,553   1,780,401   2,759,281 
Impairment of property, 
plant and equipment  -     (29,407)  -     (226,244)  (255,651)
Acquisition of assets  -     214,481   1,888   502,858   719,227 
Additions  499,579   491,395   26,050   28,989   1,046,013 
Transfer  -     150,129   -     (150,129)  -   
Disposals  -     (15,171)  (111)  (82,513)  (97,795)
Depreciation charge  -     (284,714)  (10,275)  (243,976)  (538,965)

Closing net book value  499,579   1,497,040   26,105   1,609,386   3,632,110 
      
At 30 June 2019      
Cost  499,579   2,650,370   52,596   2,947,761   6,150,306 
Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment  -     (1,153,330)  (26,491)  (1,338,375)  (2,518,196)

Net book value  499,579   1,497,040   26,105   1,609,386   3,632,110 
      
At 30 June 2018      

Closing net book value  -     970,327   8,553   1,780,401   2,759,281 

During the current year the Directors resolved to impair fixed assets of $59,578 at 
Newmarket, based on the performance of the site deteriorating.
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1 5 .  T A X  B A L A N C E S   

 2020 2019
 $ $ 
  Restated (note 30)

Income tax payable / (receivable)  
Opening balance (861) (1,020)
Tax expense  757 159
Reclassification of tax losses to deferred tax asset  -    9,040
Offset against losses from discontinued operations  -    (9,040)

Balance at 30 June (104) (861)

Deferred tax asset  
Opening balance 668,465 1,268,881
Tax (expense) / benefit 364,241 (721,456)
Acquisition of assets  -    112,000
Reclassification of tax balance from current tax payable  -    9,040

Balance at 30 June 1,032,706 668,465

The deferred tax asset consists of:  
Accrual for annual leave 133,237 75,738
Leases  153,571  -   
Tax losses 401,783 193,856
Property, plant and equipment 130,092 185,020
Other provisions 214,024 213,851

 1,032,706 668,465

1 6 .  S U B S I D I A R I E S  A N D  J O I N T  V E N T U R E S    

The following subsidiaries operate wholly in New Zealand.   

 2020 2019
 Interest Interest
Operating subsidiary Activity  
The Better Bar Company Limited Hospitality Business 100% 100%

1 7 .  T R A D E  A N D  O T H E R  P A Y A B L E S

 2020 2019
 $ $
Trade payables 2,052,344 2,225,451
Accrued expenses 978,936 409,988

Current liabilities 3,031,280 2,635,439
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.notes to the financial statements continued

1 7 A .  P R O V I S I O N  F O R  M A K E  G O O D  O B L I G A T I O N S   

 2020 2019
 $ $
Opening balance 600,000 388,800
Charged to earnings for the year  -     -   
Paid out in cash  -    (188,800)
Released to earnings for the year  -     -   
Established on acquisition of businesses  -    400,000

Closing balance - Non-current liability 600,000 600,000

1 7 B .  E M P L O Y E E  E N T I T L E M E N T S

 2020 2019
 $ $
Accrual for annual leave  589,003   439,388 
Accrual for kiwi saver  49,257   13,689 

 638,260 453,078
 
Categorised as:
 2020 2019
 $ $
Current 49,257  13,689 
Non-current  589,003   439,388 

 638,260 453,078

1 8 .  B O R R O W I N G S
 2020 2019
 $ $

Non-current
Bank borrowings 26,171,018 22,991,199

Current  
Bank borrowings 715,187 791,567

Total borrowings 26,886,205 23,782,766

Bank borrowings   
The financial covenants in place include a Gearing Ratio, a Minimum EBITDA amount and 
a Fixed Charge Cover Ratio. There have been no breaches of covenants or Events of Review 
for the current or prior year under the facility arrangement. Under the General Security 
Agreement (GSA) there are a number of circumstances that would give rise to an Event of 
Default.    
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The borrowing in the year had an effective interest rate of 11.6% (2019:  12.1%). Bank 
borrowings at 30 June 2020 mature in July 2021. They are secured by the GSA over all of the 
assets of the Group. Items classified as current at June 2020 include loans maturing within 
12 months.

1 9 .  S H A R E  C A P I T A L  A N D  S H A R E  C A P I T A L  R E S E R V E

Issued and paid-up capital - ordinary shares    

 2020  2019 
 Shares $ Shares $

Balance at beginning of the year 43,306,618 34,136,660 43,306,618 34,136,660

Shares issued for warrants exercised 10,759,072 767,590  -     -   

Balance at end of year 54,065,690 34,904,250 43,306,618 34,136,660

All ordinary shares carry equal rights in respect of voting and the receipt of dividends. They 
do not have a par value. Shares issued for warrants movement arose from changes in fair 
value on exercise date of $12,443.    

Share Capital Reserve - issued warrants    

 2020  2019 
 Warrants $ Warrants $

Balance at beginning of the year 10,759,072 780,033 10,759,072 780,033

Shares issued for warrants exercised (10,759,072) (780,033)  -     -   

Balance at end of year  -     -    10,759,072 780,033
    

As part of the financing by Nomura the Group granted warrants to Nomura on 28 June 
2018 giving the ability to acquire up to 10,759,072 shares or 19.9% of the ordinary shares 
in the Company for no consideration. The warrants were exercised by Nomura on the 31st 
October 2019.
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2 0 .  E A R N I N G S  P E R  S H A R E  ( E P S )     
 2020 2019
 $ $ 
  Restated (note 30)

Profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations (5,833,381) 208,371

Profit for the year   (5,833,381) 185,260

Profit for the year from continuing operations 
prior to significant items (non-GAAP) (6,705,315) 791,207

Issued Ordinary Shares 54,065,690 43,306,618

Weighted average number of shares 50,479,333 43,306,618

Diluted Ordinary Shares 54,065,690 54,065,690

   
 cents cents
Basic earnings per share / (losses) 
(EPS) from continuing operations (11.56) 0.48

Diluted EPS from continuing operations (11.56) 0.39

Basic EPS (11.56) 0.43

Diluted EPS (11.56) 0.34

Basic EPS from continuing operations prior to 
significant items (non-GAAP) (13.28) 1.83

Diluted EPS from continuing operations prior to  
significant items (non-GAAP) (13.28) 1.46

2 1 .  D I V I D E N D  P A I D  O R  A U T H O R I S E D     
GSH paid dividends amounting to nil during the year (2019: nil).

2 2 .  R E L A T E D  P A R T I E S
All subsidiaries disclosed in note 16 are classified as related parties. Transactions and 
balances between these related parties are as follows:

Transactions with key management

The Group undertook transactions with the following related parties as detailed below:

• LJMP Limited, an entity partially owned by Charles Whiting (a director and shareholder 
of GSH)  received rental and opex payments for the O’Hagan’s site of $125,994 (2019: 
$nil)

• Brew on Quay and Charlie Farley’s, of which Geoff Tuttle is the CEO of GSH and a 
Shareholder of GSH.   

 » The Group provided management, accounting and kitchen services. Total 
transactions for the year were $118,277 (2019: $70,496). An amount of $7,373 was 
owing at reporting date (2019: $6,763). The Group will cease providing accounting 
services at the end of October 2020.

 » The BBC occasionally purchase stock from Brew on Quay and Charlie Farley’s. 
Total transactions for the year were $nil (2019: $2,745). An amount of $nil including 
GST was owing at reporting date (2019: $3,156).

.notes to the financial statements continued
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• Consulting services (other than director responsibilities) were provided to the Group 
by Matt Adams, a director of GSH. Total transactions for the year were $196,686 (2019: 
$nil).

Trading activities with related parties   

Pacific Dawn Limited (PDL), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nomura Asia Holding N.V 
are a major shareholder and lender of Good Spirits Hospitality Limited. PDL received 
interest payments of $2,078,615 (2019: $1,974,086) and fees of $169,092 (2019: $131,023). The 
outstanding amount owed to PDL at reporting date is $27,837,685 (2019: $25,532,966).

Compensation of key management personnel   

The remuneration of key management during the year was as follows:   

 2020 2019
 $ $
Short-term benefits, consisting of salaries and bonuses 715,829 662,377

The remuneration of key executives is determined by the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. 

The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows:   

 2020 2019
 $ $
Directors fees 210,875 219,250

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

2 3 .  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S       

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group are able to continue as 
a going concern (see note 1) while maximising the return to shareholders, and to optimise 
the debt and equity balances to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements with the exception 
of covenants discussed in note 18. The Group has agreed that future dividends will only be 
paid with the approval of the lender.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and cash 
equivalents) and equity (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings) of the 
Group.

Capital risk management 

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits 
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 
capital.      
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.notes to the financial statements continued

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of 
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell 
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as 
net debt divided by net debt plus total equity. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings 
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement of 
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity is shown in the consolidated 
statement of financial position.

As at 30 June 2020 the Group has negative working capital. This is managed on an on-
going basis through cash flows from future profitability.

Financial risk management

The Group engages business in New Zealand and in the normal course of business is 
exposed to a variety of financial risk which includes:

• Market risk,      
• Credit risk, and      
• Liquidity risk

The Group recognises the unpredictability of consumer and financial markets and seeks to 
minimise the potential adverse effects of market movements. The management of these 
risks is performed in accordance with the risk management and treasury policy approved 
by the Directors. This policy covers specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and 
liquidity risk. As outlined in Note 3 and Note 28, the Group recognises the impact of 
COVID-19 and have taken all measures to reduce the impact to the business.

The Group hold the following financial instruments: 

 2020 2019
 Note $ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  29 2,796,583 1,302,038
Restricted cash 29 266,249 265,627
Prepayments  320,716 306,203
Trade receivables 11 118,850 74,375

 3,502,398 1,948,243

Financial liabilities
Bank borrowings  26,886,205 23,782,766
Trade and other payables  
(excluding GST and employee entitlements)  3,031,280 2,635,439

 29,917,485 26,418,205
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Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued 
at variable rates expose the business to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s risk 
management and treasury policy allows the potential use of derivative financial 
instruments to manage interest rate risk. However, for the year ended 30 June 2020 the 
Group did not enter into any derivative financial instruments (2019: $nil).

As at 30 June 2020 the Group had $29,250,000 drawn on a facility provided by the bank 
(2019: $27,200,000).

If interest rates had moved by + / - 1% with all other variables held constant, Group profit 
before income tax, and equity for the year ended 30 June 2020 would have decreased / 
increased by $287,000 (2019: $250,000).

Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of the counterparty, with the 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets. The Group’s 
credit risk arises from the Group’s financial assets, which include cash and cash equivalents 
and trade and other receivables. Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment 
at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that 
the estimated future cash flows of the assets have been impacted as a result of one or 
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset.

For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum long 
term rating of A are accepted. The Group has a concentration of credit risk with its cash 
and cash equivalents, which are held with one bank. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date is the carrying amount of the financial assets summarised above. 

The Group’s risk management and treasury policy also sets the maximum counterparty 
credit exposure to any individual bank or financial institution.

The quality of financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are considered 
collectable.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the Group and the Group’s subsequent 
ability to meet its obligation to repay its financial liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Group maintains sufficient cash and the availability of funding for acquisitions 
through undrawn facilities as part of its management of liquidity risk.

The Group had access to the following borrowing facilities at the reporting date:   
   

 2020 2019
 $ $
Borrowing facilities 
(of which $29,250,000 drawn, 2019: $27,200,000) 34,500,000 34,500,000

 34,500,000 34,500,000
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.notes to the financial statements continued

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity of its financial 
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of 
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay, 
including loans repayable on demand. The tables include both interest and principal cash 
flows. To the extent that interest flows are at floating rates, the undiscounted cash flows are 
derived from the interest rate at 30 June.      

 Carrying 
 value at 0-3 3-12 Year 2 Years Over  
 reporting date months months  3-5 5 years Total 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

As 30 June 2020    
Interest bearing liabilities 26,886,205 833,305 2,649,918 27,755,989  -     -    31,239,212
Lease liabilities 14,033,341 515,209 1,545,629 2,018,065 5,434,606 13,915,122 23,428,631
Trade and other payables 3,031,280 3,031,280  -     -     -    - 3,031,280

 43,950,826 4,379,794 4,195,547 29,774,054 5,434,606 13,915,122 57,699,123

As 30 June 2019

Interest bearing liabilities  26,171,018 935,358 2,806,077 25,801,069 -    -   29,542,504
Trade and other payables 2,687,074 2,687,074  -     -     -     -    2,687,074

 28,858,092 3,622,432 2,806,077 25,801,069  -     - 32,229,578

Fair Value Estimation

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) 
Level 1 are measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities, (ii) Level 2 measurements are valuations techniques with all material 
inputs observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and (iii) Level 3 
measurements are valuations not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
Management applies judgment in categorising financial instruments using the fair value 
hierarchy. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant 
adjustment, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. The significance of a valuation 
input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entity. 

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed
Financial assets and liabilities

Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy for other financial assets and 
liabilities not measured at fair value, for which the Group estimates their fair value 
approximates the carrying amounts, are as follows:

Level 1 - Cash on hand and cash equivalents held at banks (note 23)

Level 2 - Restricted cash (note 23), trade and other financial receivables (note 11), trade and 
other financial payables (note 17)

Level 3 - Borrowings (note 18)

The fair values in Level 2 and 3 of fair value hierarchy were estimated using the discounted 
cash flows valuation technique. The fair value of floating rate instruments that are not 
quoted in an active market was estimated to be equal to their carrying amount.
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Gaming Machine

Trillian Trust Limited (the Trust) owns certain gaming machines and possesses a licence to 
operate gaming machines under the Gambling Act 2003. Good Spirits Hospitality allows 
the Trust to place its gaming machines and associated equipment at venues and performs 
certain administration and management services in connection with the operation of those 
gaming machines. In addition, GSH has separate trust bank accounts and manages the 
flow of funds in relation to the Gaming Act 2003 which is administered by The Department 
of Internal Affairs.

As at reporting date, $179,103 is held in GSH’s bank accounts. The total amount owing to 
the Trust is $179,103.

2 4 .  D I S C O N T I N U E D  O P E R A T I O N S  H E L D  F O R  S A L E    

 2020 2019
 $ $
Mad Butcher Business  
Revenue  -     -   
Expenses  -     -   

Profit before tax  -     -   
Tax benefit  -     -   

Profit for the year  -     -   

Impairment of the Mad Butcher Business assets  -     -   
Tax benefit  -     -   

Loss for the year  -     -   

Gross proceeds from sale of the Mad Butcher Business  -     -   
Net assets sold  -     -   
Costs on sale  -    (32,151)

(Loss) / profit before tax  -    (32,151)
Tax benefit  -    9,040

(Loss) / gain on sale of the Mad Butcher Business   -    (23,111)

2 5 .  C O M M I T M E N T S

The Group has capital commitments of $nil as at 30 June 2020 (2019: $1.9m).

The Group has other commitments of $nil as at 30 June 2020 (2019: $nil).

2 6 .  C O N T I N G E N T  L I A B I L I T I E S       

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2020 (2019: $nil).   
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2 7 .  N O T E S  S U P P O R T I N G  S T A T E M E N T S  O F  C A S H  F L O W S

Reconciliation to operating activities in the cashflow:  
 2020 2019
 $ $ 
  Restated (note 30)

Profit for the year (5,833,381) 185,260

Adjusted for:   
Depreciation and amortisation  841,061 538,965
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  1,425,489  -   
Interest on leases  1,299,133  -   
Property, plant and equipment impairment  59,578 255,651
Sale of Lynfield venue   -    (115,270)
Goodwill impairment  4,855,744  -   
Disposal of property, plant and equipment  91,970  -   
Non-cash interest charges  2,031,048 983,594

Changes in assets and liabilities   
Decrease / (increase) in receivables and prepayments  (58,988) (163,768)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories  (19,410) 10,407
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables and accruals  435,383 (99,031)
Increase / (decrease) in income tax  (363,484) 712,575

Net cash inflows from operating activities 4,764,143 2,308,383

Reconciliation to financing activities in the cashflow: 

   Lease  
 Current Non-current liability 
 loans loans (note 13) Total 
 $ $ $ $

As at 30 June 2019 791,567 22,991,199  -    23,782,766

Cash Flow    
Repayment of borrowings (791,567) (41,766) - (833,333)
Payment of refinancing cost - (144,275) - (144,275)
Bank borrowing drawn down - 2,050,000 - 2,050,000
Principal paid on leases - - (515,056) (515,056)
Interest paid on leases - - (1,299,133) (1,299,133)

Non-cashflows   
Loans classified as non-current at- 
30 June 2019 becoming current in 2020 715,187 (715,187) -  -   
Capitalised interest  - 1,088,052 - 1,088,052
Interest - 942,995 - 942,995
Lease adjustments (note 13) - - 15,847,530 15,847,530

As at 30 June 2020 715,187 26,171,018 14,033,341 40,919,546

.notes to the financial statements continued
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2 8 .  E V E N T S  A F T E R  R E P O R T I N G  D A T E

COVID-19
As outlined in Note 3, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the New Zealand Government 
ordered a four-week lockdown from late March to late April 2020, during which non-
essential businesses and organisations were not allowed to operate. As a result of the 
lockdown, community transmission of COVID-19 was eliminated. Following the lockdown, 
restrictions were gradually eased within New Zealand, although restrictions remained at 
the border. 

In mid-August 2020, community transmission of COVID-19 was detected in Auckland. As a 
result, the New Zealand Government placed:

• Auckland into lockdown, with non-essential businesses not allowed to open their 
premises to customers and permitted to operate only if they could do so in a 
contactless manner (which required online ordering and contactless delivery or 
collection)

• Restrictions on public gatherings for the remainder of New Zealand, with non-
essential businesses allowed to open their premises to customers only if they could 
maintain social distancing. 

In addition, travel between Auckland and the rest of New Zealand was severely limited. 

At the time of signing these financial statements, the restrictions put in place in mid-
August 2020 has been lifted and the Group is now operational. The Company, which has its 
business premises in Auckland and Hamilton are making sales, but revenue is considerably 
lower than for the same period in 2019. 

Re-financing
Subsequent to year-end, the Group has renegotiated its banking facilities with Pacific 
Dawn Limited (PDL). Part of this re-negotiation requires the Group and PDL to consult 
and work together in good faith to agree to a new set of financial covenants that will apply 
to the Group on and from 31 March 2021. It has been agreed to defer the setting of a new 
covenant regime until the first half of calendar year 2021 to allow the Group to build up a 
trading history and increased cash position post the COVID-19 shutdown. The Group must 
propose revised financial covenants for consideration by Pacific Dawn Limited no later than 
15 January 2021 and agree these by 15 February 2021. 

As consideration for renegotiating its banking facilities,  GSH will issue to Pacific Dawn 
further shares in GSH to take Pacific Dawn from a holding of 19.90% to a holding of 24.99% 
of the ordinary shares of GSH. Pacific Dawn will make no cash payment for the shares, and 
GSH obtained a waiver from NZX to enter into the amendment and extension agreement.

It is emphasised the decision to postpone the setting of covenants is for positive reasons 
as it allows both the Company and Nomura to set the regime in a stable environment post 
COVID-19.
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.notes to the financial statements continued

2 9  C A S H  A N D  C A S H  E Q U I VA L E N T S     

 2020 2019
  $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 
(for purposes of the statement of cash flows comprises:)

Cash at bank  2,531,988 1,086,776
Cash on hand  264,595 215,262

 23 2,796,583 1,302,038

Restricted cash
Bank term deposit  76,154 75,000
Landlord bonds  190,095 190,627

  266,249 265,627

3 0 .  A D J U S T M E N T  T O  T H E  P R I O R  Y E A R  T A X  E X P E N S E

While finalising the financial statements, it was identified that the deferred tax position in 
the prior year was overstated in respect of deferred tax asset capitalised and associated 
with historical tax losses and timing differences associated with the deductibility of certain 
property, plant & equipment write offs.

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line 
items for the prior period as follows:

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
 2019 Increase / 2019 
  (Decrease) Restated
Deferred tax asset 995,406 (326,941) 668,465
Accumulated losses (21,907,126) (326,941) (22,234,067)
    
Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other    
Income tax (expense) / benefit (394,674) (326,941) (721,615)

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the prior year have also been restated. The 
amount of the correction for basic earnings per share was a decrease of 75 cents per share 
and for diluted earnings per share was a decrease of 51 cents per share.

The correction further affected some of the amounts disclosed in note 1v, note 10, note 15 
and note 20. 
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Q U O T A T I O N  O F  S H A R E S
The Company’s shares are listed and quoted on the NZX Main Board operated by NZX 
Limited under the ticker code “GSH”.

C H A N G E S  T O  N A T U R E  O F  B U S I N E S S
At the beginning of the accounting period, GSH’s mandate was that of an investment 
company focusing on the hospitality sector. GSH’s objective is to become the number one 
hospitality operator in New Zealand.

S I Z E  O F  S H A R E H O L D I N G  A S  A T  3 0  S E P T E M B E R  2 0 2 0

Spread of  
shareholding

Number of 
shareholders

Number of 
ordinary shares

% of total ordinary 
shares on issue

1 – 1,000 177 67,709 0.12%

1,001 – 5,000 160 510,877 0.88%

5,001 – 10,000 82 662,068 1.15%

10,001 – 50,000 90 2,092,850 3.62%

50,001 – 100,000 31 2,319,111 4.02%

100,001 plus 41 52,081,843 90.21%

Total 57,734,458 100.00%

S U B S T A N T I A L  P R O D U C T  H O L D E R S 
The following shareholders have filed notices with the Company that they are Substantial 
Product Holders in the Company as at 30 June 2020 (there being a total of 54,065,690 
shares on issue at that date).

Shareholder Number of ordinary shares %

Pacific Dawn Limited^ 10,759,072 19.900%

Christie Whiting Vermunt Limited 8,070,226 14.972%

AK Christie Holdings Limited* 8,070,226 14.972%

FF Investments NZ Limited* 8,070,226 14.972%

Franklin Holdings Limited* 8,070,226 14.972%

Robert Gerald Hampden Christie 4,545,455 8.407%

Collins Asset Management Limited 6,166,684 11.406%

Timothy John Burcher & Graham Edward 
Jackson & Richard Christopher Guy Sigley

2,847,235 5.266%

^ Holder of a relevant interest in financial products held by New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited for 
Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) Limited as nominee for Pacific Dawn Limited.

* Holder of a relevant interest in financial products held by Christie Whiting Vermunt Limited.

On 29 September 2020, 3,668,768 new ordinary shares were issued to Pacific Dawn 
Limited’s nominee. Following the issue of the new ordinary shares, there are a total of 
57,734,458 shares on issue.

.shareholder and statutory information continued
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D I R E C T O R S ’  S H A R E  H O L D I N G S  A S  A T  3 0  J U N E  2 0 2 0

Name Beneficial Shareholding 
(number of ordinary shares)

Non-Beneficial 
Shareholding (number of 

ordinary shares)

Duncan Makeig - -

Carl Carrington - -

Matt Adams - -

Charles Whiting 8,070,226 -

Geoff Tuttle 2,385,714 -

T O P  2 0  S H A R E H O L D E R S
The following table shows the names and holdings of the top 20 shareholders of the 
Company as at 1 October 2020.

Shareholder Shares 
held

% of 
Total

1 Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) Limited^ 14,427,840 24.99%

2 Christie Whiting Vermunt Limited 8,070,226 13.98%

3 Collins Asset Management Limited 6,166,684 10.68%

4 Robert Gerald Hampden Christie 4,545,455 7.87%

5 Timothy John Burcher & Graham Edward Jackson & 
Richard Christopher Guy Sigley 2,847,235 4.93%

6 Geoffrey Eamon Tuttle & Carl David Sowter 2,385,714 4.13%

7 New Zealand Depository Nominee  2,337,130 4.05%

8 Rosemary Joan Christie 1,373,636 2.38%

9 Custodial Services Limited 1,084,051 1.88%

10 Laphroaig Trustee Company (NZ) Limited 752,288 1.30%

11 Ambrosia Trustees Limited 750,000 1.30%

12 JBWERE (NZ) Nominees Limited 550,000 0.95%

13 Terence Roland Harrison 454,545 0.79%

14 Awatea Investments Limited 400,000 0.69%

15 Ken & Arlene Eaves Trustee Company Limited 329,079 0.57%

16 Brendon Craig Kerr 322,877 0.56%

17 Rahul Krishan Lal 320,813 0.56%

18 Michael John Cooper 300,000 0.52%

19 Keith Norman Goodall & Pamela Joan Goodall 
& Trusts Limited 300,000 0.52%

20 Richard George Anthony Kroon 272,629 0.47%

^ The registered holder is New Zealand Central Securities Depository Limited. Citibank Nominees (New Zealand) 
Limited is nominee for Pacific Dawn Limited.
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N Z X  W A I V E R S  A N D  E X E R C I S E  O F  P O W E R S
GSH was not granted, and did not rely on, any waiver of any NZX Listing Rule during the 
accounting period ended 30 June 2020.

As disclosed in the 2019 Annual Report, on 2 September 2019 NZX released a public 
censure of GSH in relation to a breach that occurred during the previous accounting 
period ended 30 June 2019. Details of that public censure can be found in the 2019 Annual 
Report and on https://www.nzx.com/companies/GSH/announcements.

D I R E C T O R S  O F  T H E  G R O U P  A S  A T  3 0  J U N E
The Directors of the Group as at 30 June 2020 were:

Group Company Directors as at 30 June 2020

Good Spirits Hospitality Limited • Duncan Makeig 
• Carl Carrington 
• Charles Whiting1 
• Matt Adams 
• Geoff Tuttle2

Craig Norris resigned as Director on 31 July 2019
John Moore resigned as Director on 11 December 2019
Garry Downs resigned as Director on 11 December 2019

The Better Bar Company Limited • Carl Carrington
• Duncan Makeig
John Moore resigned as Director on 11 December 2019

Old Butcher Limited • Carl Carrington
John Moore resigned as Director on 11 December 2019

MB Silverdale Limited • Carl Carrington

KJV Holdings Limited • Carl Carrington

1 Resigned after the accounting period on 5 October 2020.
2 Appointed after the accounting period on 5 October 2020.

D I R E C T O R S  R E M U N E R A T I O N  A N D  O T H E R  B E N E F I T S
The table below sets out the total remuneration received by each Director and former 
Director from the Group for the accounting period ended 30 June 2020. See also note 22 
to the Financial Statements for details of other benefits received by the Directors from the 
Company during that period. 

Name Directors’ 
Fees

Chairman’s 
Fees

Committee 
Chair Fees

Duncan Makeig $66,500 $9,500

John Moore (resigned 11 December 2019) $17,849 $4,462

Craig Norris (resigned 31 July 2019) $1,834

Carl Carrington $38,000 $9,500

Garry Downs (resigned 11 December 2019) $17,849

Charles Whiting 
(appointed 11 December 2019, resigned after the 
accounting period on 5 October 2020)

$20,192

Matt Adams (appointed 11 December 2019) $20,151 $5,038

.shareholder and statutory information continued
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The Directors’ fees are set as follows:

• each Director (other than the Chair) is paid $40,000 per annum.

• the Chair is paid $70,000 per annum.

• additional amounts are paid to committee members.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee Chair receives $10,000 per annum. The 
Investment Committee Chair receives $10,000 per annum. The Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee Chair receives $10,000 per annum. Directors do not receive 
additional remuneration for committee membership other than in their capacity as 
Committee Chair.

I N D E M N I T Y  A N D  I N S U R A N C E
GSH has insured and indemnified all of its Directors and Officers against liabilities and 
costs referred to in sections 162(3), 162(4) and 162(5) of the Companies Act 1993. The 
insurance and indemnities do not cover liabilities arising from criminal activities.

C H I E F  E X E C U T I V E  O F F I C E R ’ S  R E M U N E R A T I O N
Geoff Tuttle was appointed CEO effective 29 August 2018. During the accounting period 
ended 30 June 2020, his remuneration was as follows:

Remuneration $

Base salary $350,000

Short-term incentive (bonus) paid in respect of the 2019 year $30,000

Long term incentive paid in respect of the 2019 year N/A

Total remuneration $380,000

See the commentary under the heading “Short-Term Incentive” on page 16 of the 
“Corporate Governance Statement” section of the Annual Report for further information 
regarding short term incentives.

E M P L O Y E E S  R E M U N E R A T I O N
During the accounting period ended 30 June 2020, the number of employees, not being 
a Director of a member of the Group, who received remuneration and other benefits the 
value of which exceeded NZ$100,000 was as follows:

Range $
No of 

Employees
No of former 

Employees

100,000 - 149,999 - -

150,000 - 159,999 1 -

160,000 - 299,999 - -

300,000 - 309,999 - 1

310,000 - 359,999 - -

360,000 - 389,999 1 -
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A U D I T  F E E S
During the accounting period to 30 June 2020 PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditor 
of the Group and the Company appointed BDO Auckland as the Group’s auditor. The 
amounts paid to each of BDO and PricewaterhouseCoopers, as auditor of the Group and 
as a separate item for other services provided to the Group during the accounting period 
ended 30 June 2020 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

D O N A T I O N S
No donations have been made by the Group for the accounting period ended 30 June 
2020.

D I S C L O S U R E  O F  I N T E R E S T S
Entries in the Interests Register made during the accounting period ended 30 June 2020 
and disclosed pursuant to sections 211(e), 140(1) and 148(2)(b) of the Companies Act 1993 
are as follows:

G E N E R A L  D I S C L O S U R E  O F  I N T E R E S T S
General disclosure of interests as at 5 October 2020 given by Directors of the Group 
pursuant to section 140(2) of the Companies Act 1993.

Group Company Status

Duncan Makeig Good Spirits Hospitality Limited Chairman

 The Better Bar Company Limited Director

 China Road Pty Ltd CEO / Director 

 Sydney Children’s Hospitals Foundation Ltd Chairman

 Makeig Management Pty Ltd Director

 Makeig Superannuation Management Pty Ltd Director

 Wirrabilla Pastoral Pty Ltd Director

 Athletic Greens, Inc. Chair of 
Advisory Board

Carl Carrington Good Spirits Hospitality Limited Director 

 The Better Bar Company Limited Director

 Old Butcher Limited Director

 MB Silverdale Limited Director

 KJV Holdings Limited Director

 Hop Revolution Limited and subsidiaries Director 

 Minaret Investments Limited Director 

 McCashin’s Brewery Limited Director 

 Advisory Board - H King Technologies Pty Advisor

 Reefton Distilling Co Director 

.shareholder and statutory information continued
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 Cawthron Institute Director 

 Mt Cook Alpine Salmon Director

Unique Manuka Factor Honey Association Director

 Peninsular Trust Trustee

Matt Adams Good Spirits Hospitality Limited Director 

 Dynamic Corporate Investments Pty 
Ltd Director, Shareholder

 K&M Superannuation Pty Ltd Director, Shareholder

 Ceramic Fuel Cells Limited Company Secretary

 Tomizone Limited Director

 Tomizone Australia Pty ltd Director

Jimojo Pty Ltd Director

Geoff Tuttle Good Spirits Hospitality Limited Director, Shareholder

Brew on Quay Limited Director, Shareholder

Get Capital Limited Director, Shareholder

Get Investment Trust Trustee

Elam Street Trust Trustee

As noted earlier, each Director of the Company has a Deed of Indemnity in place under 
which the Company indemnifies and effects insurance in respect of certain liabilities 
and obligations incurred by him in his capacity as a director of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. 

Charles Whiting was appointed as a director during the accounting period ended 30 June 
2020 and retired as a director after that accounting period with effect from 5 October 2020.  
Entries in the Company’s interests register made during the accounting period ended 30 
June 2020 disclosed by Charles Whiting are set out below.

Charles Whiting Fish Funds Pty Limited Beneficiary 

 Mandoe Pty Limited Indirect shareholder 

 LJMP Limited Indirect shareholder 

 FF Investments NZ Limited Director

 Christie Whiting Vermunt Limited Director and indirect 
shareholder (substantial 
product holder in the 
Company)

During the accounting period ended 30 June 2020, Craig Norris retired as a director of the 
Company with effect from 31 July 2019 and each of Garry Downs and John Moore retired as 
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries (as applicable) with effect from 11 December 
2019.  There were no entries in the Company’s interest register for Craig Norris, Garry 
Downs or John Moore during the period 1 July 2019 to their effective retirement dates.
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Nature of Business
Listed Investment Company

Independent Directors
Duncan Makeig (Independent)
Carl Carrington (Independent)
Matt Adams (Independent)
Geoff Tuttle

Chief Executive Officer
Geoff Tuttle 

Chief Financial Officer
Anthony Laus

Registered Office
Ground Floor, Building B
95 Ascot Avenue
Greenlane
PO Box 17474, Auckland 1546

Share Registrar
Link Market Services Limited
Level 7, Zurich House
21 Queen Street, Auckland

Auditors
BDO Auckland
Chartered Accountants
4 Graham Street, Auckland
PO Box 2219, Auckland 1140

Solicitors
Harmos Horton Lusk Limited
Level 33, Vero Centre
48 Shortland Street 
PO Box 28, Auckland 1010

Investor Enquiries
anthony@gsh.co.nz

Bankers
Pacific Dawn Limited
Bank of New Zealand

Website
www.goodspiritshospitality.co.nz

.corporate directory
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